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WHERE TO FIND US
Tel: 011 645 2000
Fax: 011 645 2020
Physical Addresses:
Childline Home Office Children’s Memorial Institute, Corner Empire Road & Hillside Road,
& Inner City:
Parktown, Johannesburg
Childline Soweto:

Chris Hani Baragwanath Hospital, Old Potch Road, Soweto

011 938 8745

Childline Sebokeng:

Emfuleni Municipality, 3 Moshoeshoe Street, Sebokeng

016 592 5327

Childline Orange Farm: Arekopaneng Youth Centre, 14356 Extension B, Ward 4, Orange Farm 072 597 9096
ChildlineTembisa:

Rabasotho Community Centre, No.2 Qaga Street, Andrew Mapheto 011 926 1282/1983
Drive, Tembisa

Childline Katorus:

Resource Centre, 824 Ramokonopi West, Katlehong

ChildlineDiepsloot:

Afrika Tikkun Winds of Life Community Centre, No. 6 Peach Road, 087 150 2249
Extension 6, Diepsloot

011 905 0920

CHAIRPERSON’S REPORT – TSHEBO MOKOENA
In these challenging economic times, with rapid migration and urbanisation, we indeed continue to be inspired by the resilience
of our children and their ability to adapt and overcome hardships that is so humbling. They are truly the face of our African
traditions of Ubuntu and the great hope for our country and continent.
I would like to honour the volunteers’selfless giving, and the staff for being loyal to the cause. We appreciate their professionalism.
I am also so privileged to be part of the Childline Gauteng community’s commitment to the creation of a better world for
young people 24/7 and 365 days a year.
The organisation is able to meet its commitments and obligations to the children through the ever giving support of our
partners, to whom we are accountable.
We have the pleasure to confirm, on behalf of the board, that Childline Gauteng is able to meet its obligations and we are
looking forward to the next financial year with passion and enthusiasm.
#innerchild
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT – LYNNE CAWOOD
Childline Gauteng’s services, based on our vision of “caring for children”, and our mission, aligned to the Bill of Rights and
section 28 of the Constitution, are vitally important to the positive development of children in South Africa. We advocate for
their constitutional rights and promote a sense of responsibility to uphold this world-class legislation. We believe that this
will radically change children’s lives and impact positively on us all.
We have pleasure in reporting our achievements for the financial year 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016:
• 24/7 toll-free Helpline – 237 171 service-related calls
• The Childline Community-based Centres (CCBCs) in the inner city, Soweto, Katorus, Tembisa, Sebokeng, Orange Farm and
Diepsloot, assisted 1 881 families with 9 310 counselling sessions, 82 group therapy and 65 child development sessions
• The Community Awareness and Prevention Programme CAPP), reached 61 870 learners, 1 121 teachers and 4 156 parents
• The Community Outreach, Events and Campaigns (98) reached a total of 33 369 people: 9 105 adults and 24 264 children,
in conjunction with our partners to create greater sensitivity to the needs of young people
• Sunlight Safe House provided overnight care for 174 children in life-threatening circumstances of abandonment, abuse or
neglect, and homes for 124 temporary/foster care children
• Our Training Department provided 22 talks and workshops to 446 staff and community members
The highest categories of children’s problems throughout our key projects continue to reflect: physical, emotional and sexual
abuse; family relationship problems including domestic violence, bereavement and neglect; abandonment of children;
bullying; and, substance abuse. We call for national healing processes for the adult generation who are projecting their own
experiences of trauma onto the youth with tragic consequences. This healing can take many forms, including: counselling,
spiritual engagement and traditional methods, depending on what is ego syntonic for the individual. It is critical that we stop
the intergenerational cycles of violence now.
We continue to be inspired by the resilience of our children and their ability to overcome hardships is humbling. They carry
the seeds of joy and our African traditions of Ubuntu, warmth and passion. They are our great hope for our country and our
continent.
I would like to honour our partners, Board of Directors, management, staff, students, volunteers, foster parents and children.
I am privileged to be part of the Childline community’s commitment to the creation of a better world for young people 24/7
and 365 days a year.
We thank all loyal friends and funders for assisting Childline Gauteng to grow into a formidable organisation over the past 29
years. We are grateful for your continued support in sustaining and extending our services. It is said that children are the soul
of the nation and we thank you for your investment in our nation’s collective wellbeing.

ANALYSIS OF CHALLENGES FACED BY CHILDREN IN GAUTENG
There are many socio-economic ills as shown by the Gauteng Provincial Statistics (Child Gauge: 2013 - 2015)
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Category

Stats – 2013

Stats – 2014

Stats – 2015

Child Population

3.3 million

3.5 million

3.57 million

Living with Both Parents

1.6 million

1.8 million

1.9 million

Living with Mother Only

1.1 million

1.08 million

1.1 million

Living with Father Only

146 000

148 000

135 000

Living with Neither Parent

422 000

426 000

396 000

Maternal Orphans

63 000

127 000

98 000

Paternal Orphans

320 000

289 000

283 000

Double Orphans

94 000

95 000

79 000

Child-Headed Households

1 000 (2011)

6 000 (2012)

13 000 (2013)

Maternal HIV Infection Rate – Public Clinics 28.7% (2011)

29.9% (2012)

Poverty (-R604 per head)

1.139 million (2011)

1.196 million (2012)

1.219 (2013)

Reported Child Hunger

333 000 (2011)

439 000 (2012)

391 000

Living in Informal Housing

643 000

705 000

713 000

Foster Children

58 000

55 027

53 411
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High levels of crime and violence continue to plague our children: 784 967 children are victims of sexual abuse before the age
of 17 (Centre for Justice and Crime Prevention: 2016); 18 524 sexual offences against children reported (SAPS: 2013/4); 51%
witnessed violence (South African Medical Research Council - SAMRC); and, 3 children die of unnatural causes every day in
SA - 45% of them due to abuse and neglect (SAMRC: 2009).
An analysis of statistics throughout the Childline Gauteng projects indicates that our services are providing assistance to many
families who are beset with these violent, psycho-social and economic challenges:
• On our Helpline, the highest number of calls relate to physical/emotional abuse, family relationship problems, poverty and
substance abuse
• In the Counselling Services the majority of clients are children with behavioural problems, those experiencing sexual
violations, bereavement and emotional abuse
• In our Community Awareness and Prevention Programme, the highest number of disclosures were for bullying, physical
and emotional abuse, and sexual violence
• The reasons for children coming into the child protection system via the Sunlight Safe House are neglect, abandonment
and physical abuse
In summary, physical violence and emotional abuse against children reflect highly, with families experiencing fragmentation
and many problems including poverty resulting in child neglect. This results in children acting out their emotional and physical
deprivation/abuse through behavioural problems, premature sexual relations and substance abuse, which create further
problems for themselves and their families.
These findings are similar to previous years and reflect the absolute necessity of national healing and finding solutions
to violence through peaceful problem solving and conflict resolution mechanisms within families and communities. The
counsellors engage with every child-related problem with a view to providing individualised prevention, early intervention,
risk assessment, access to child protection services if necessary and strengthening families to meet their physical, emotional,
educational and spiritual needs.

VISION STATEMENT
Caring for Children

MISSION STATEMENT
Service excellence to children and families, facilitating: equality; human dignity; life; a name and nationality; family or alternative
care; nutrition; shelter; education; health and social services; protection from maltreatment, neglect, abuse, degradation and
exploitative labour practices; freedom from detention and armed conflict, for every child, as enshrined in the SA Bill of Rights
(Act 108 of 1996)

VALUES STATEMENT
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The Best Interest of the Child: this principal governs all our work
Child-Centred: provide child-centred services that take cognisance of the rights of children and young people and
preserve the family unit where possible
Child Participation: ensure children’s voices are heard in all of our projects
Accountability: remain accountable to the children we serve, the social work profession, our partners and the Childline
Gauteng team
Transparency: remain transparent in all aspects of service delivery
Respect: demonstrate respect for persons of all class, race, language, religious, cultural and sexual orientations
Communication: maintain open and direct communication
Transformation: reflect all South African cultures in our management, staff and volunteers
Development and Empowerment: work within a developmental and empowerment model of social service delivery
Confidentiality: respect for the client’s right to confidentiality within the limitations of the child protection system
Accessibility: responding to all child-related issues in community-based centres and providing 24/7 emergency services
365 days a year

These values underpin our efficient, effective, specialised social services to children, their families and communities.
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SERVICES
Childline Gauteng runs the following programmes:
•
•
•
•
•

24-hour toll-free Helpline
Face-to-face counselling services
Community Awareness and Prevention Programme (CAPP) in schools
Community Development Events
Sunlight Safe House (SSH), which offers emergency night-time shelter to abused, abandoned, neglected, orphaned and
vulnerable children, as well as foster care
• Training
Services are implemented from Childline Gauteng’s seven community-based centres in Soweto, Sebokeng, Orange Farm,
Tembisa, Katlehong, Diepsloot and the inner city of Johannesburg. Here follows a detailed report on each project and each
of the Community-based Centres.

HELPLINE
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE - HELPLINE
Working collectively to promote a culture of child rights and responsibilities through the facilitation of child protection services,
in collaboration with a large number of partners and stakeholders; as well as by providing interventions that are preventative,
supportive and empowering and advocate for children and their families. The Helpline is toll free, operates 24/7, 365 days a
year, and is available in all 11 SA official languages, as well as French.
Head of Department

Faiza Khota (BA Hons Social Science; MA Social Work Research – in progress)

Volunteer External Supervisor Anette Alan (social worker)
Internal Training

Faiza Khota (BA Hons Social Science; MA Social Work Research – in progress)
Childline Training Department

Legal Adviser

Liezel Power (PHD – in progress)

Helpline Advisers

Vivienne Davidoff & Anette Alan (BA Hons Social Work)

Helpline Supervisors

Pauline Damane (BA Psych, Social Aux Work); Gadifele Mokoena (Social Aux Work;
BA in progress); Metoh Azunui (BSc Chemistry, BA Human and Social Studies – MA
Development Studies) Thato Mokoene (Social Aux Work)

Just a few of our Helpline team members
Top row, from left: Mpendulo, Lindelwa, Success, Thato, Cracia, Nonjabulo, Evans, Gadifele and Azunui.
Bottom row, from left: Pauline, Zethu, Faiza and Sylvia
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Introduction
The Helpline promotes a culture of child rights and responsibilities, safety and development through telephone counselling
for children and their families regarding all issues of concern. We provide individualised risk assessment in life threatening
circumstances and facilitate child protection services from SAPS - Child Protection Unit, DSD and Child Welfare when necessary.
Government departments and not-for-profit organisations are overwhelmed by the need for child protection services and
this presents a major challenge for Childline Gauteng. Ongoing problems are experienced in accessing protective services for
children because of the high demand on state resources and we are increasingly looking for community solutions to children’s
difficulties. Counsellors follow up with every client until we are assured of a successful referral and the child’s safety.
Prevention, early identification of problems and practical intervention strengthen the family and community to meet the child’s
physical, emotional, material and spiritual needs. This service limits the exacerbation of problematic situations for optimal
family functioning and child developmental opportunities.
This around-the-clock service in 12 languages (not all at the same time) is toll free from Telkom, Vodacom and MTN every day
of the year.
We recognise that families and communities are integral to the development of each child and we help them to support and
care for their children. We adopt the approach that children need to take appropriate responsibility to assist their families
and communities helping them to develop awareness of how they may be contributing to negative outcomes through their
behavioural problems. Children need positive discipline and we help them to recognise that it is their caregivers’ responsibility
to ensure that they grow up to be respectful contributing members of our society.
Due to our focus on training and development, many of our counsellors have tertiary education and are able to offer professional
intervention and support in a variety of situations, as listed in our breakdown of calls below.
Children feel comforted to know that there is a caring children’s organisation just a phone call away. They will often phone just
to say hello or to share their little joys. Our counsellors augment the caregivers’ role by helping with homework, encouraging
them to do their best at school, wishing them a good day/night and happy birthday.
Helpline Statistics
Childline has a 10-seater call centre and we are grateful to pro bono partners, BitCo, for their highly sophisticated ITC equipment
and support allowing us to track all calls pertaining to a particular client; and, Majestic, who provide our data capturing and
management system, which allows for improved accessibility, information collection and management of counsellors, leading
to greater understanding of children’s issues.
Analysis of the statistics indicates that the number of calls has continued to decline due to our zero marketing budget.
Children are also using technology to appeal for help and to access information to a greater extent. We plan to update our
website to a mobisite to allow for easy access to information and resources for the 165 categories of issues we deal with for
our technologically advanced generation.
Number of calls dailed to the Helpline over the past 13 years:
2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

132 529 164 814 199 195 265 820 495 318 534 596 606 169 946 855 750 149 581 544 422 503 339 088 305 223
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Breakdown of calls per category
14000

13613

13357

12000

10000

8000

6000
4396
4000
2741
1470

1156

731

Undefined / Other

Services

School Problems

Refugee Child

Psychological Health

13

Substance Abuse

375
Sexual

949

635
Poverty

Peer Relationships

Neglect

Legal Issues

Homelessnes

Hiv/Aids

Discrimination

224

152
Family Relationship Problem

184

Commercial Exploitation

Behaviour Problems

Alternative Care

Abuse

0

218 98
Disability

1169

Physical Health

1745 1855

2000

2665

1962

The table above shows the major categories of reasons why children called Childline Gauteng: abuse (13 613) remains the
highest; followed by services (13 357); family relationship problems (4 396); poverty (2 741); substance abuse (2 665); legal issues
(1 962); behaviour problems (1 855); children in alternative care (1 745); neglect (1 470); homelessness (1 167); psychological
problems (949); school problems (731); health issues (635); peer relationships (224); commercial exploitation (218); discrimination
(184); HIV/Aids (152); disability (98); and problems related to refugees (13).
These figures correlate with statistics from Child Gauge 2015, indicating that family life in Gauteng is fragmented, resulting in
many social problems impacting on children. A brief analysis indicates that children calling us report the following:
Abusive practises represent 27% of calls, which are predominately emotional abuse at 10%, physical violence at 9%, abductions
at 2% and children witnessing domestic and criminal violence at 6%. Sexual violations reports are lower at 1.3% for rape and
sexual assault, 1.2% for verbal sexual abuse/sexual harassment and 0.3% of clients exposed to or involved in the creation of
child abuse images.
Additional Family relationship problems at 9% and family legal problems at 4% portray high levels of conflict, separation
and divorce within families with concomitant care, maintenance and custody issues. Although many of our clients experience
fractured families, approximately 9% call to debrief specifically because of their emotional trauma resulting from not living
with their parents or with single parents due to separation, death or divorce.
Problems experienced in Alternative care i.e. adoption, foster care, institutions and informal care are at 4%, indicating that
children experience trauma in separation from their biological families and placement in child protection services, and remain
vulnerable after removal from families.
Poverty remains a cause for great concern impacting on family life at 6% of calls, often resulting in neglect at 3%, coupled with
homelessness at 2%. This is linked to commercial exploitation of children at 0.5% including child labour, sexual exploitation
and trafficking.
Disclosures of other social ills such as HIV/Aids are lower than previous years at 0.3% indicating that the roll out of ARVs has
had a profoundly positive impact on children. Refugee issues are at 0.03%, which may indicate that this vulnerable group are
afraid to draw any attention to themselves by reporting problems. Discrimination is only at 0.3% indicating this is not a major
reason for children calling Childline Gauteng.
Psychological health at 2%, physical health at 1% and disability at 0.1% are of concern.
7
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Calls relating to children with behavioural problems are 4%, which confirms media reports of children being vulnerable
through undisciplined behaviour. Youth engaging in sexualised behaviour (1%) contribute to their vulnerability and the
possibility of perpetuating the cycle of deprivation into the next generation through teenage pregnancy.
School-related issues such as bullying, school refusal and corporal punishment are low at only 1%. We are hopeful that the
Department of Education has made great strides in resolving many of the problems in the education sector.
Of interest are calls pertaining to services at 27%: the majority of these callers thanked Childline Gauteng for a positive
engagement (13.4%); there were also a large number of requests for information on services (9.5%).
4% of all our calls received were from people who were abusive to our counsellors.
Call Tracking
The busiest time of the day generally begins at 12pm and steadily increases throughout the afternoon until early evening. The
call volumes then taper down after 8-9pm. The average call waiting time is between 10 and 15 seconds.
Our data indicates that we are reaching our intended age group, with the majority of calls being received from children
between the ages of 10 and 18. Generally, calls from older people apply to family violence, divorce issues or caregiver concerns.
In terms of the gender split, currently the cases logged on our data capturing system indicate that there is a relatively even
distribution across genders with boys at 53%, and girls at 47%. This indicates that our strategy of engaging both boys and
girls has been successful with the increase in male callers from previous years.
Email Counselling
Our e-counselling service has grown substantially during this financial year. The service is predominantly used by adults looking
for advice or assistance with issues relating to abuse and contact and care of children. We also deal with cases referred by
Childline offices in other provinces. During this financial year we engaged with 614 clients through the e-counselling service.
Multiple follow ups are made via email and, where possible, telephonically until a solution is reached.
Monitoring and Evaluation
• All cases opened on the Helpline were subjected to rigorous scrutiny to ensure quality services by supervisors and the
HOD. Our sophisticated BitCo ITC equipment allows us to track all calls pertaining to a client and to listen to recordings of
calls for quality improvement
• On-site supervision is provided during the day and telephonically at night and weekends
• 155 Individual and 55 group supervision sessions and 6 debriefing sessions were offered to the team
• The M&E assessment indicates  that the Crisis Line contributes to the achievement of the Sustainable Development Goals
for 2030: ending poverty and hunger; good health and wellbeing; quality education; gender equality; reduced inequalities;
peace; justice and strong institutions
• Analysis of the calls indicated that we are closely aligned with the National Development Plan (NDP) and the National
Action Plan for OVCs (NAPO): strengthening and supporting families to care for OVCs; ensuring access to services; and
strengthening mechanisms to implement NAPO
Highlights
• We continue to work with a volunteer legal adviser, Liezel Power, to bring legal support to children going through the
criminal justice system and several cases have had very positive outcomes
• Our relationship with the Foundation for Professional Development (FPD) resulted in the placement of 12 social work
and psychology graduates for training and development. The interns attended the Helpline counselling course in their
first week at Childline and throughout the year we spent a great deal of time mentoring and developing them through
case discussions, tutorials, individual supervision and training. We have moved 5 interns from our first group to night and
weekend shifts and into other Childline Community-based Centres due to their exceptional performance
• We have participated in two law reform commissions, one relating to the contact and care of children for the amendments
to the Children’s Act and one for the Bill on child marriage
• We assisted Childline South Africa, in partnership with Fair Trade, in conducting interviews for research on the commercial
sexual exploitation of children
• We participated in a focus group for research conducted by Unisa on child pornography
• We have installed the Majestic database (pro bono), which has improved our data collection and case management
significantly
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• 68 networking meetings were held this year with FCS, Child Justice Forum, Dimension Data, Fair Trade, Santam, Bitco,
Department of Education, Johannesburg Children’s Home, Facebook, The Foundation for Professional Development, and
the Lovelife exchange platform
• The Helpline team watched a film, Dis Ek, Anna, produced by Times Media, which focused on the sexual abuse of a young
girl by her step-father. This really built our understanding and sensitivity to incest
• The following training was attended by the Helpline team: Cognitive Behavioural Therapy, Communication Skills, Commercial
Exploitation of Children, Youth and Pornography, Internet Safety, Eating Disorders, Wiser Seminar on Sex Abuse Images,
Child Law Training, Refresher Helpline Counselling Course, Foreign National seminar, Trafficking Act, Majestic Data Capturing
System, Lifeline Services, Legal Assistant Services, Excel Basics and Excel Intermediate
• We worked closely with students from St Andrew’s, St Benedict’s and Roedean Schools, whose students volunteered their
services
• The Helpline participated in the following media opportunities: Channel Islam for child protection week, Al Jazeera on
services, The Star, West Side Radio, The Citizen on matric exam results, WIFI TV on child abuse and sexting
• Childline Western Cape spent two days with the Helpline HOD in order to benchmark their technology and processes
• The team participated in all activities during Mandela Day
• Two representatives from the Helpline sit on the Employment Equity Forum
• The Helpline participated in the inner city rejuvenation project where we reached out to people in our area to inform them
about our services
• The Helpline HOD facilitated a presentation to UJ strategic communication students on Childline and our marketing strategy
which will enable them to do a brand scan

SUNLIGHT SAFE HOUSE (SSH)
Strategic objective - SSH
To ensure child safety by providing emergency after-hours care for abandoned, abused, orphaned, neglected and exploited
children who have been removed by SAPS; as well as providing foster care in loving community homes.
Head of Department Children’s Services

9

Sandy Mahapi (BA Hons Social Work)

Head of Department Parent Services

Lineo Rabotapi (Social Auxiliary Work and Community Development)

Child and Youth Care Trainer

Marie Waspe

Therapeutic Team

Jabulile Ndlandla (BA Social Work) Alfonso Michael (BA Social Work) Landiwe
Nkosi (Social Auxiliary Work)

Child and Youth Care Workers

Vivienne Ramodia (Child and Youth Care Diploma in progress); Nthabiseng
Madzinge (Child and Youth Care Diploma); Elizabeth Seabi (Child and Youth
Care Diploma); Relief CYCW: Rahab Ntsoane (Child and Youth Care Diploma)

Administrator

Masello Molefi

Housekeeper

Julia Ndzukula

Consultant Remedial Teacher

Gail Munczinski

Volunteer Mentors

Catherine Mosemaka; Elizabeth Mkhize; Jabulile Tsagae; Thandi Xaba; Joyce
Tshesejane; Sydney Tshabalala; Motsabe Kunene; Yolande Pama
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Sunlight Safe House Foster Parents
Adelaide Ndlovu
Alice Ntuli
Angelina Nchunu
Bongeka Dukisa
Caroline Skosana
Katherine Chauke
Catherine Mosemaka
Cindy Sproat
Doris Mbuyisa
Dorothy Maake
Elizabeth Mkhize
Emily Magagula
Esther Modau-Matamela

Gertrude Koahela
Gertrude Dhlamini
Gladys Dhlamini
Gloria Ncama
Jabu Tsagae
Josephine Maluleke
Joyce Tshesejane
Jumaima Mthethwa
Kate Twala
Lilly Selelo Nyembe
Mary Makananise
Mabel Legoale
Motshabi Kunene

Nomsa Dhlamini
Patricia Khuzwayo
Petunia Sithole
Poppy Mzobe
Poppy Tebakang
Puleng Ikaneng
Sandra Makhathini
Sara Mbatha
Sara Mkhwanazi
Sonto Sithole
Suzan Mabatho
Suzan Nqukuthu
Sylvia Baloyi

Sylvia Lesito
Sylvia Phiri
Sydney Tshabalala
Thandi Nhlapho
Thandi Thomo
Thandi Xaba
Thembisile Sithole
Thoko Mabuza
Thoko Mofokeng
Thoko Khumalo
Victoria Bantwini
Yolanda & Frederick Kekesi

We honour the late Willemina Makhudu for her life of dedication to children at the Sunlight Safe House.

Introduction - SSH
The SSH is a unique service with the Sunlight House Reception Centre providing care for children in life threatening circumstance
(abused, abandoned, neglected, orphaned and lost children) after hours at night, on weekends and public holidays.
The SSH has provided care for approximately 6 798 children since the inception of the project. We provided placement and
services for 174 children in overnight care and foster care for 124 children with volunteer community parents in the period
under review.
The SSH was initiated in 1997 as a partnership between Childline Gauteng, the SAPS - Child Protection Unit, the DSD and
Child Welfare, in response to the tragic plight of children who remained in unsuitable conditions following removal from their
families after hours. The project began with 20 community parents who were trained to take children into their homes and
provide a healing environment as a temporary place of safety until such time as the statutory services were able to investigate
the circumstances and make appropriate recommendations to the Children’s Court regarding their placement.
In 2002 the services were expanded to provide foster care for children with special needs, who had remained in our care for
lengthy periods, due to the limited number of foster homes and to prevent secondary traumatisation. HIV positive children
and teenagers were placed in foster care with SSH families.
A partnership with Unilever, the Sunlight Brand, enabled us to open the after-hours Sunlight House Reception Centre for
abused, abandoned, neglected and orphaned children. We salute Unilever for their long-term, loyal support.
There are currently 51 active volunteer community Safe Houses situated in Johannesburg, Soweto, Katorus, Tembisa, Sebokeng
and the West Rand.
Sunlight Safe House Reception Centre Operations
174 Children were placed in overnight care. This represents their entry into the child protection system, which can be very
traumatic involving their removal from their family and entering a highly complex and regulated system, and is therefore
crucial in terms of preventing secondary trauma. Police and Child Protection Unit (CPU) officers bring the children with the
required documents (form 36 and 7) and are obligated in terms of the Children’s Act to take them to the Children’s Court
enquiry in conjunction with the statutory social workers within 24 hours. The court may find the children in need of care and
order their removal to alternative placement.
Of the 174 children, we provided 168 repeat placements for Child Welfare and the Department of Social Development to ensure
the best outcome for each child as statutory social workers were unable to find suitable interim placements.
Social workers are on call after hours to advise the CPU and do a risk assessment to ensure the best placement and child safety.
Children are warmly received by our child and youth care workers, at times in the middle of the night. They receive debriefing
and a simple explanation of what to expect on their journey through the child protection system. They are given a warm meal
and a care pack with a change of clothes, a teddy bear and toiletries.
In the current year, social workers have visited different police stations to market the service and to provide training on the
legal criteria for admission into the child protection system.
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Reason for Placement
The reasons for the children’s entry into the child protection system via the SSH are: neglect (54); abandonment (34); physical
abuse (33); sexual abuse (9); lost children (13); behavioural problems (3); and other (28), which includes reasons such as the
caregiver being hospitalised or imprisoned.
70
60
Sexual Abuse
50

Physical Abuse
Abandoned

40

Lost
Behaviour Problems

30

Refugee
Neglected

20

Other
10
0

Sunlight Safe House – Foster Care Programme
In 2002 we began providing a foster care service for HIV positive and vulnerable teenage children. During the period under
review, we had 124 foster children who were cared for with love and compassion, while their physical, emotional, educational,
social, spiritual and medical needs were met. This enables each child to grow into a resilient adult and make a contribution
to our society.
We currently have 122 children in care, of which 111 are in foster care and 11 in the Independent Living Programme. The social
workers provided reunification services to 11 families and have successfully reunified children with their families.
Children’s Services
We provide a comprehensive service to each child, based on their Individual Development Plan (IDP). This is based on the
Circle of Courage, including: relationships; growth towards independence; values; and, educational/medical and social needs.
The review of the IDPs ensures that set developmental goals continue to be met and extended.
The social workers have individual and group counselling sessions with the children and refer for educational and psychological
assessments where necessary. The struggle of getting children educationally assessed continues due to the long waiting lists
at governmental departments.
Other services include children’s rights campaigns, holiday programmes and life skills groups. The children have been responding
very well to the services offered to them. Positive feedback was received as the children’s attendance improved.
Weekly team meetings/case conferences are held to deal with challenges that arise within the homes and with children.
Support Services for Children:
2014/15

2015/2016

Office Interviews

384

389

Home Visits

277

175

Telephone Interviews

1 783

2634

Individual Counselling Sessions

95

Remedial Classes
Due the increasing number of children with learning challenges, a weekly remedial class is offered by Gail Munczinski for 20
of our younger children. This has proven to work very well, as foster mothers have observed positive changes in children’s
school work.
Occupational Therapy, Psychological and Educational Assessments
Children are referred to local hospitals, clinics and the Department of Education for psychological, occupational and educational
assessments. The process is slow because of the long waiting lists for children who require assessments in the province.
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Organisations offering these services were approached to assist with the challenge but this has proven to be unsuccessful
due to the costs involved. As a result, it is very challenging to ensure that children with special educational needs are placed
in the correct educational facility.
Facilitation of Identity Documents
The Wits Law Clinic continues to assist the foreign national children who do not have identity documents and they are working
on an application to the High Court for the remaining 5 children who are still without identity documents. The Legal Resource
Centre has also been approached to assist one of the children who is in the Independent Living Programme to obtain a study
permit and permanent residence so that he can complete his studies at the Maharishi Institute.
Groups Facilitated
Group work is held with children in foster care. A total of 50 sessions have been conducted over the year on the following
topics: positive living for those infected and affected by HIV/AIDS; reproductive health; myths around HIV/Aids; vision for
2016; end-of-year celebrations; examination preparation; drama and storytelling as tools for dealing with trauma; planning
for events during the course of the year; self-care; conflict resolution; and self-awareness.
Independent Living Programme
We currently have 11 children in the Independent Living Programme: 2 are permanently employed; 1 is a graduate from the
Regenesys Business School; 3 are pursuing a BA Administration degree through the Maharishi Institute; 1 young man, who
is a successful DJ, recently signed a contract with E TV (Rhythm City) for his music; 1 is studying towards a pharmacy assistant
diploma; 1 is doing an engineering diploma; and, 1 an FET diploma.
We are very proud of our positive young adults!
Most remain living with their foster families, as we believe that foster care is forever. We assist with registration fees and a small
stipend to ensure they can access tertiary education and for personal needs until they find employment.
Group life skills training on a monthly basis involved: a recovered drug addict motivational talk; proudly South African cultural
discussions; spiritual discussions; vision and hopes for 2016; values and evaluation of SSH services; and HIV prevention and
reproductive health.
Support Services
All mothers receive a monthly stipend of R360 per child to supplement the foster care grant. The children with special needs
receive additional support for transport for medical check-ups and transport to school. Transport often places a financial strain
on the foster parents as the special schools are usually outside their communities. Clothing and furniture is provided when
needed. The foster parents have expressed sincere gratitude for the assistance.

Parent Services – SSH
The Sunlight Safe House is indebted to ordinary community parents whose love and compassion move them to take children
into their own homes. They are a vital component of this service and we honour their passion for, and commitment to,
vulnerable children.
The Sunlight Safe House parent services are managed according to developmental principles by Mme Lineo Rabotapi, who is
an expert in community development. She is committed to providing training and mentoring for all parents to ensure the best
possible care for children. The selection, screening, training, supervision and monitoring of each placement is vitally important.
The SSH provides additional support for parents in the form of a small stipend, allocation of furniture, payment of crèche fees and
transport, as well as distribution of nutritious food donations for the homes to augment the foster care grant of R890 per month.
Developmental opportunities for SSH parents:
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2014/15

2015/16

Office Interviews

215

165

Telephone Interviews

1057

685

Home Visits

90

230

Counselling

127

68
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Monthly Parents’ Training
The topics covered in the period under review during our monthly community meetings on the first Saturday of every month
included: behaviour management; positive parenting; planning for the holidays to ensure child safety; strategic planning for
2016; HIV/Aids prevention and tuberculosis; maternal attachment and the effect of maternal deprivation; life-cycle stages;
and self-care.
Support Groups for SSH Parents
Foster parent support groups meet quarterly to discuss topics of interest to the parents:
• Parents with teenagers - behaviour management and child development; self-care; cultural issues and the IDP observation
framework
• Parents with pre-teens and toddlers - behaviour management and child development
Mentor Group
The Sunlight Safe House mentors are experienced mothers who support and assist younger parents. They meet regularly to
ensure optimal input into families. Training included: supervision of families and feedback to the social workers; debriefing
and dealing with trauma; use of emotional intelligence when mentoring parents; basic counselling skills; assistance for foster
mothers in planning for December holidays to ensure child safety; providing positive constructive feedback to parents; and;
self-care.
Individual Sessions for Foster Mothers
Individual assessments were conducted for all the foster mothers who needed extra support. This is an additional monitoring
tool to assess the care of children in foster care, support mothers in coping with personal problems and empower parents.
Highlights and Special Events
Camp
The social workers went on a two-day camp, hosted by Sizanani, in Magaliesburg with children from the age of 10 years. The
main focus of the camp was HIV/Aids prevention: a life skills programme where they learned about HIV; positive reproductive
health; self-protection; defending themselves against addictions; exploitation and abusive behaviour.
Nosipho, one of the older children, wrote:

“From the camp I learnt a lot with regards to HIV as one of the illnesses affecting the nation as a whole.
The camp really opened my eyes with the life skills classes that were offered to us by the Vochelis where we discussed issues such
as sexual relations and the implications of making wrong choices when it comes to our sexual lives as young people and future
leaders of our blessed nation. This was a very life changing experience. Our phones were taken away from us for the time we
were there, which allowed us to let the outside world be itself while we were fully there mentally as individuals. Because of the
experience I had, ‘it is well with my soul’ and I am positive that I will make right choices as a
young woman and grow wise.”
Mandela Day
All the children and some of the parents were bussed in to celebrate the life and values of Nelson Mandela with the staff and
our partners. Yet again, different funders honoured the day by volunteering their services. The younger children did art therapy;
the pre-teenagers watched Long Walk to Freedom and the young adults did fundraising for their trip to Durban. The spirit of
the day was to remind everyone about the sacrifices that were made by those who fought in the struggle so that everyone can
live in peace and harmony. Special thanks to BARMOTION and SAPPI for their generous donations and motivational speech.
Heritage Day: “Childline has Talent”
Sunlight Safe House commemorated Heritage Day and all attended in large numbers. The occasion celebrated the value of
various traditions in South Africa. Partakers came dressed in their cultural attire, symbolising their heritage. Both children and
their foster parents were given the opportunity to talk about their traditional customs. The parents gave a presentation on
their totems and clan names. The children did the same, according to the knowledge imparted to them by their guardians.
Children were given an opportunity to showcase their talents. They performed individually and in groups. They partook in
music, drama, reading and dancing. After each performance, a certificate was awarded as a token of appreciation of every
talent. It was a wonderful day and the children felt recognised and took full advantage of the opportunity to exhibit their
talents. This enabled the children to realise their values and aspirations, to grow and become responsible adults who can
contribute meaningfully in their communities. The foster parents felt very proud to have afforded the kids the opportunity
to grow in nurturing environments.
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Christmas Party
It was the time of the year for giving and sharing. The children were presented with Christmas gifts and a lunch box, courtesy
of Santa’s Shoe Box and Moore Stephens. It was a very wonderful moment for our kids, knowing that they are part of a caring
community. Children and foster parents watched the Sleeping Beauty Pantomime sponsored by the Johannesburg Theatre
with lunch packs provided by Investec Capital Bank. The children were all smiles at the end of the day. This brought to them
a sense of a caring world, regardless of their difficult backgrounds. Investec ICIB kindly provided a very delicious lunch for the
parents with generous Christmas hampers for each family.
Visit to the Sea
The Independent Living Group had a weeks’ holiday at the Childline Gauteng time share (kindly donated by Digby Jennings)
in Durban. They engaged their entrepreneurial skills to raise the money for their transport. A wonderful time was had by all.
Monitoring and Evaluation – SSH
Each social worker has monthly supervision on all cases and a total of 66 of these consultation sessions were held during the
period under review. Files are assessed regularly to ensure that all appropriate services to children are offered.
We have established an Access database, recording details of each child in the overnight service. The EpiInfo data capturing
system was implemented for capturing demographic data and a record of services provided. This allows for the on-going
monitoring of all beneficiaries and the compilation of accurate and current statistics relating to the programme. Capacitate
Consultancy was employed to do external M&E and set up the EpiInfo data capturing system.
The Sunlight Safe House is in the process of reviewing all individual development plans (IDPs) for all children in care to ensure
that all developmental goals are met. Social workers are expected to address developmental needs to ensure that each child
grows to the best of their potential. Each child receives an IDP report and a discussion session with the parents and child is
held once per year. An IDP review assessment meeting is held once a year and a report is written up. This allows for us to
plan appropriately and to ensure the needs and aspirations of the child are met. This system allows the evaluation of the
programme and the long-term impact of our interventions on the child.
A special thank you to our partners who have supported the children and parents in the Sunlight Safe House over many years:
Unilever for their sponsorship; Moore Stephens for adding much value at events; Investec for Christmas parties; Mister Sweet
for adding a touch of sweetness; the Johannesburg Civic Theatre; the US Embassy; Santa’s Shoe Box; and, many individuals.
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COUNSELLING SERVICES
Strategic Objectives
To strengthen children and their families through counselling services in an accessible, supportive and culturally sensitive
manner, facilitating protection services and assisting in their healing and development to reach their potential and to play a
meaningful role in their communities and beyond.
Head Of Department

Bulelwa Dabula (BA Education, BA Hons Social Work)

Soweto Co-Ordinator

Lethokuhle Nkambule (BA Hons Social Work)

Soweto Social Worker

Sungulani Ndhlovu (BA Hons Social Work)

Katlehong Co-Ordinator

Thabile Nxumalo (BA Hons Social Work)

Sebokeng Co-Ordinator

Mirriam Bucibo (BA Hons Social Work)

Orange Farm Co-Ordinator

Maserame Dzibana (BA Hons Social Work)

Tembisa Co-Ordinator

Shonani Mhlanga (BA Hons Social Work)

Tembisa Social Worker

Evone Cebe (BA Hons Social Work). Previously Margaret Singo

Diepsloot Co-Ordinator

Nokwazi Dlamini (BA Hons Social Work)

Inner City Co-Ordinator

Nozizwe Matibiri (BA Hons Social Work)

Inner City Social Worker

Margaret Bowes (BA Hons Social Work)

Introduction – Counselling Services
We have Childline Community-based Centres (CCBCs) in the Johannesburg inner city, Soweto, Sebokeng, Orange Farm,
Katlehong, Tembisa and Diepsloot. This allows for easy access for clients and community development, focusing on all child
rights and protection issues. Each office offers counselling services, an awareness and prevention programme in primary
schools, a child development project and community development/awareness. Each centre engages with the community
forums in the area and provides unique campaigns to address issues that are pertinent to the community they serve.
Our team of highly trained social workers deal with all child-related problems, including: all forms of sexual violence (sexual
abuse, rape and attempted rape, infant and anal rape); physical abuse; emotional abuse; neglect; grief and loss; trauma;
witness to violence and domestic violence; assault and bullying; young sexual offenders; those infected or affected by HIV/
Aids; behavioural problems; and adult survivors of childhood abuse.
Each client receives an individualised counselling service depending on the clinical assessment, including: individual, group,
family, marital and play therapy. They also provide court preparation and support where they advocate for each child’s right
to justice, dignity and respect within their communities and the criminal justice system. The social workers offered a total of
9 310 individual sessions to 1 881 families/children and 82 group therapy sessions.
The child development programme was introduced after extensive training by Zakheni on the Firemaker model, with a view
to maximising our efficacy using creative arts. This model ensures the holistic development of the child focusing on increasing
children’s resilience. The activities focus on building trust and regaining a sense of safety; moving out of isolation; expressing
feelings; feeling listened to and acknowledged; building self-esteem; overcoming obstacles; and developing imagination.
Activities include positive cultural traditions including dancing and singing; communication skills; art-making, as well as
story-making and story-telling. Each group writes a script related to their experiences and produces a puppet show making
the materials from waste, which is exhibited in their school or community. Feedback from parents and teachers has been
extremely positive. 65 child development sessions were offered.
Community Development and Awareness Campaigns are conducted mainly during Child Protection Week and 16 Days of
Activism against Violence against Women and Children. These events are conducted with all stakeholders in each area, led
by DSD. The focus is on developing child-friendly communities through: sharing of information; training in positive parenting
and protection against substance abuse; assisting child headed households; mobile services to access birth certificates, ID
documents and social grants; fire, water and traffic safety; and, child rights and responsibilities. 21 817 people were reached by
the counselling teams, of whom 7 640 were adults and 14 177 children, in addition to those reached through the community
media opportunities.
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Please see the CCBC’s report below.
Statistics – Counselling Services
Comparative annual statistics of counselling sessions offered:
2009/10

2010/11

2011/12

2012/13

2013/14

2014/15

2015/16

Inner city

Childline branch

1 246

1 605

1 454

1 929

963

1 225

1411

Soweto

1 136

1 628

1 165

870

1 293

3113

1785

Katorus

1 233

927

880

935

813

903

1520

Tembisa

2 075

1 375

879

1 447

1 117

1 608

1702

738

860

752

997

999

950

1071

916

624

445

838

893

592

456

928

6 046

6 720

6 222

9 093

9310

Sebokeng
Orange Farm
Diepsloot
Total

6 428

6 395

Reasons for Counselling Services (2014-2015)
23,4

1,4
0
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0,2
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Homeless

0,7
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0,8
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2,9

Young Offender

3,2

Poverty

3,4

Legal Issues

Family Problems

3,7

Dep

Witness to Violence

4,0

Divorce/Marital Counsel

Neglect

4,4

HIV/AIDS

Physical Abuse

4,5

Suicide

Other

4,6

Adult Survivor

Bullying

Emotional Abuse
10,4

Trauma

5.0

10,8

Domestic Violence

10.0

Sexual Abuse Total

15.0

Grief & Loss

19,8

20.0

Behavioural Problems

25.0

0,1

The graph above shows reasons why children received counselling services in the 2015/16 financial year. As can be seen, the highest
3 categories of problems were related to sexual abuse at 23.4%, behaviour problems at 19.8% and grief and loss (often due to HIV/
Aids) at 10.8% of all counselling sessions. This is in line with the statistics from the previous financial year when these problems also
featured as the critical problems facing children.
The main reasons for clients receiving counselling services are related to some form of violence: sexual abuse 23.4%; emotional abuse
10.4%; domestic violence 4.6%; bullying 4.4%; physical abuse 3.7%; trauma 4.5%; adult survivor of sexual abuse 1.4% and assault 0.1%.
Family relationship problems feature significantly: domestic violence 4.6%; family issues 2.9%; divorce and marital counselling 0.5%;
young/adolescent offenders of sexual violence 0.4%; and, legal issues 3%.
Poverty-related problems such as neglect 3.4; homelessness 0.1%; and poverty 0.3% also feature.
These results indicate the critical necessity of assisting families and communities with positive methods of resolving problems rather
than resorting to violence.
Monitoring and Evaluation – Counselling Services
The Head of Department does on-site supervision on a monthly basis in each office. All case files are checked for quality of
service and monthly team meetings/case consultation, as well as debriefing and prevention of vicarious post-traumatic stress
sessions are offered. Pre- and post-questionnaires for counselling and group work clients are completed regularly to provide
critical feedback.
Capacitate Consultancy implemented the EpiInfo data capturing and analysis systems.
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COMMUNITY AWARENESS AND PREVENTION PROGRAMME
(CAPP)
Head of Department

Gita Dennen (BA Hons Psychology; Master’s Diploma in Play Therapy)

Inner City CAPP Social Worker/Trainer

Gail Tlomatsana (BA Hons Social Work)

Soweto CAPP Social Worker

Nomsa Sekete (Social Auxiliary Work; BA Social Work in progress)

Katlehong CAPP Social Worker

Gift Matjia (BA Hons Social Work)

Tembisa CAPP Social Worker

Tsakani Muhlare (BA Hons Social Work) – resigned in November

Sebokeng CAPP Social Worker

Nthabiseng Mokebe (BA Hons Social Work)

Inner City CAPP Counsellor/Co-Facilitator

Phakeme Mahlangu (Psych. Hons)

Soweto CAPP Counsellor

Nthabiseng Tshehla (Social Auxiliary Work)

Katlehong CAPP Counsellor

Themba Mkhize (Social Auxiliary Work)

Tembisa CAPP Counsellor

Lindo Mkhize

Sebokeng CAPP Counsellor

Busisiwe Dube (BA Social Work in progress)

Strategic Objective – CAPP
To create awareness and provide education regarding children’s rights and responsibilities in schools and communities, to
enable children to grow and develop in a safer and more nurturing environment.
Introduction – CAPP
The CAPP team aims to share information about children’s rights and related issues and to empower educators, learners, parents
and all those who work with children. Working from the premise that “knowledge is power”, our goal is to raise awareness
through capacity building for professionals and laypersons working with children, as well as educating children about their
rights and responsibilities. In this way, we are striving towards prevention of child rights violations and early intervention in
cases of child abuse and neglect.
Children cannot be responsible for ensuring their own safety, as they are disadvantaged in terms of their age, intellectual capacity
and lack of physical strength. However, making them aware of their rights helps them identify when they feel uncomfortable
and to choose a caring adult whom they can trust to help them.
Our School Programme is extremely comprehensive: we facilitate class-byclass, age-appropriate talks to all the children in primary schools visited. We
teach children how to keep their bodies and feelings safe and who to go to
for help if they are hurting. These talks reinforce what is being learnt in Life
Orientation lessons. We also provide a voluntary workshop to the educators
in each school visited on identifying and responding appropriately to child
abuse and offer other workshops, for example, on positive discipline. The
toll-free Helpline number is taught to all children and educators and we
emphasise that Childline Gauteng is there to assist both. After the class
talks, children are invited to speak to our teams one on one about anything
that might be troubling them. In this way, many children are counselled
and referred for further services.
The LEADers programme is run in five of our community-based centres. LEADers stands for Leading by Example, Acting on
our Dreams. This programme is run over 16-18 sessions and aims to increase participants’ self-esteem, give them a positive
sense of belonging, and develop their leadership and communication skills by showing them that they can make a difference
in their own lives and in their communities. We also facilitate positive parenting workshops for the LEADers’ parents, and the
Schools Programme is conducted at the LEADers’ schools. This ensures that the adults in their lives have an understanding of
our purpose and are better equipped to support the development of the LEADers.
This year, the CAPP teams facilitated holiday programmes in the inner city, Soweto, Tembisa and Sebokeng, during either the
July or October school holidays. The team made use of the Firemaker model, engaging children in creative activities designed
to build their resilience on a number of levels. Participants got to use their imagination, create and tell stories, make puppets
and musical instruments, and play fun games, which build resilience by encouraging a sense of trust, safety and belonging,
while improving social and creative skills.
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Holiday programme creativity in action
All our programmes encapsulate the principles of human rights and encourage a sense of responsibility regarding children’s
rights. We aim to teach learners to understand and respect the rights of others as well, encouraging the development of
Ubuntu. All programmes are implemented in the following Childline community-based centres: the inner city, Katorus,
Tembisa, Soweto and Sebokeng.
Overall CAPP Statistics:
2015-16
School Talks

81

Crèche Talks

108

Leaders Programmes Completed

5

Holiday Programmes Completed

4

Children Reached (Schools, Crèches, Leaders, Holiday Programmes)
Teachers’ Workshops

72

Teachers Trained

1 121

Brief Counselling Sessions

1 036

Referrals to Clinical Team

256

Parent Talks/Workshops

69

Parents Reached
Training Rendered (External and Internal)
Number of People who Attended
Child Protection Events/Community Outreach
Children Reached at Child Protection Events/Community Outreach
Adults Reached at Child Protection Events/Community Outreach
TOTAL CHILDREN

18

61 870

4 156
22
446
44
10 871
1 465
72 741

TOTAL ADULTS

7 188

OVERALL TOTAL

79 929
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Comparison of highest categories of child rights violations reported during brief counselling sessions:
Community-based
offices

Inner city
(87)%

Soweto
(207) %

Sebokeng
(117)%

Katorus
(439)%

Tembisa
(186)%

2015-16
(1036)

2014-15
(1022)%

Sexual Abuse

15%

13%

9%

7%

10%

10%

7.5%

Physical Abuse (Total)

3%

7%

10%

18%

14%

13%

14.9%

Physical Abuse
(Home)

3%

7%

9%

18%

9%

12%

14.4%

Emotional Abuse

0%

5%

5%

9%

6%

6%

8.3%

Neglect (Physical and
Emotional)

2%

5%

7%

6%

5%

6%

9%

Witness to Violence
(Home)

5%

6%

3%

3%

5%

4%

5.8%

Family Relationship
Problems

13%

9%

2%

2%

2%

4%

4.8%

Bullying (Total)

29%

14%

38%

35%

38%

31%

28.8%

Bullying (By Peers)

28%

9%

37%

35%

37%

30%

26.6%

Poverty Related

1%

6%

2%

1%

2%

2%

2.5%

Grief & Loss

5%

10%

3%

3%

3%

4%

3.4%

CAPP Brief Counselling by Category 2015-16:
35

30

25

20

15

10

5

19

Childline Gauteng | Annual Report 2015-2016

Other

School Problems

Poverty

Substance ABuse

Bullying

Grief & Loss

Trauma

WItness to VIolence

Famliy Relationship
Problems

Neglect

EMotional Abuse

Physical Abuse

Sexual Abuse

0

Analysis of Statistics
It must be noted that these figures are rough indicators, as issues are often interrelated and may be captured under other
principal reporting categories. Brief counselling sessions are categorised according to the primary presenting problem, but
it goes without saying that a child who is being physically abused in the home is most likely also emotionally abused. The
same child may also be physically neglected. Similarly, many children who have been abused have also suffered loss, which
oftentimes is unacknowledged. In other words, children’s issues are complex and there is co-morbidity of abuses and issues.
The number of brief counselling sessions increased slightly from 1 022 in the 2014-15 year to 1 036 in the 2015-16 year.
In all areas, children are experiencing problems at home more than anywhere else. There are especially high reports of physical
abuse (at home) in Sebokeng, Katlehong and Tembisa. If we combine the figures for emotional and physical abuse, neglect,
domestic violence, other family relationship problems, caregiver substance abuse and bullying by siblings, we find that this
accounts for 35% of all brief counselling sessions held over this period. These figures confirm the need for parenting skills
training, in particular, but generally they point to a need to support and empower families and to raise awareness of children’s
rights among all adults.
There was an increase in the percentage of disclosures of sexual abuse, from 7.5% of all disclosures in the previous financial
year to 10% this year. Previous years have shown slight decreases, and it is unclear why there was an increase this year.
Disclosures of bullying, particularly by peers, increased significantly again this year, from 29% in the previous year to 31% of
all disclosures received. This is very likely as a result of our team highlighting bullying as a form of abuse during class-to-class
talks. High rates of bullying are generally accounted for by the high rates of violence experienced by children in their homes
and communities, both directly, and indirectly. Many of these cases are dealt with at the school, but referrals to our clinical
team pose a challenge as parents seem to minimise the problem, and do not bring their children in for further counselling.
While the increase indicates children’s willingness to report the problem, we still believe that children may be under-reporting
due to the normalisation of the situation, combined with the belief that nothing will be done about it.
There was also a marked increase in the number of disclosures relating to substance abuse – from 0.8% to 4.2% this year. While
some of the children came to talk about their caregivers or family members’ substance abuse, most of these actually related to
the children themselves. Marijuana, benzene and cigarettes were the most common substances these children reported using.
The shifts in other categories were not very significant, and indicate that children continue to face a variety of complex and
interconnected issues on a daily basis in their lives.
We may speculate about a number of possible reasons for differences between community-based offices, and from year to
year as indicated in the table above:
• Differences in categorising between CAPP co-ordinators, particularly where there are a number of different, but concurrent
problems. This issue is addressed in file supervision as well as group supervision, and we strive continually for more
uniformity in reporting.
• Children’s perceptions of what they should be reporting and, importantly, of whether reporting will change anything.  
• Differences in the norms and practices, lifestyles, attitudes and resources in each area.
Please see Childline Community-based Centres.
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CHILDLINE GAUTENG: COMMUNITY-BASED CENTRES
Childline Community-based Centres (CBCs) are based in the Johannesburg inner city, Soweto, Katlehong, Tembisa, Sebokeng,
Orange Farm and Diepsloot. The location of sites was originally based on a needs assessment and statistics from these
communities on the Helpline. Each CBC is centrally placed in previously disadvantaged areas that have experienced high
levels of socio-economic and political challenges. Our services are thus easily accessible, sensitive to prevailing conditions
and able to drive community development appropriately.
The focus of services in the CBCs is: prevention; early intervention; family/community strengthening; addressing child rights
violations; promoting positive child behaviour; and, sourcing child protection services from SAPS and DSD when necessary.
The CBCs are staffed by members of the Counselling and CAPP teams as well as interns/students and an admin support person.
Childline Soweto Community-based Centre
Childline Soweto is based at Chris Hani/Baragwanath Hospital and works closely with the hospital, Nthabiseng Thuthuzela
Community Care One Stop Centre on the premises, all stakeholders and the DSD Child Protection Forum.
The team serves the entire Soweto area, which has a strong sense of community, is empowered and well informed of services
and socio-economic rights.
The Soweto Team:
Soweto Co-ordinating Social Worker

Lethokuhle Nkambule (BA Social Work)

Counselling Social Worker

Sungulani Ndlovu (BA Social Work)

Capp Social Worker

Nomsa Sekete (Social Auxiliary Work; BA Social Work in progress)

Capp Counsellor

Nthabiseng Tshehla (Social Auxiliary Work)

Reception/Administrator

Vuledzani Muligidi (Social Auxiliary Work – in progress)

Pepfar Social Work Intern

Thobisane Mhlango (BA Social Work)

Student Social Workers

Lungiswa Masikane (4th Year Social Work - Unisa)
Nombuyiselo Madolo (4th Year Social Work – Unisa)
Asithandile Silepe (4th Year Social Work – Unisa)

In 2015-16 this dynamic team achieved phenomenal results:
• The Clinical team completed 1 785 counselling sessions; 8 sessions for 2 therapeutic groups; and 14 child development
sessions.
• The CAPP team completed: the school talks programme at 26 schools, reaching 13 431 children and 316 educators; visited
27 crèches, reaching 1 661 children and their 123 caregivers/teachers; and they did 5 positive parenting workshops and 27
parenting talks, reaching 1 656 parents in the community. In addition, they facilitated both a LEADers group (16 sessions)
and a holiday programme (5 days).
• Together the teams reached 10 139 adults and children in community outreach programmes and community events, such
as Child Protection Week and 16 Days of Activism. For example, one vibrant event with Batsogile and Nkoli Primary School
children addressed all forms of child abuse with active participation and sharing of experiences from the learners.
The three highest categories for counselling clients in Soweto were children presenting with behavioural problems, followed
by death and bereavement and child witness to violence. In brief counselling sessions held during the CAPP school talks
programmes, the three highest categories were bullying, sexual abuse and grief and loss.
The 2 therapeutic groups were for: girls and boys (separately) who were acting out sexually at school; and for children with
other behavioural problems, aiming to promote positive values, dealing with peer pressure, reproductive health issues and
psycho-social skills. Parents have expressed their appreciation for positive changes in their children’s previously problematic
behaviour.
The child development programme was hosted at Inkwekwezi Primary School, which is based in the marginalised Motsoaledi
informal settlement, with children with behavioural problems and poor self-esteem, and was a great success. Teachers reported
very positive changes in the children who participated.
36 networking sessions with various stakeholders ensured positive relationships and good referrals. Soweto works hand in
hand with the Soweto Child Protection Forum comprising of Departments of Social Development, Health and Education; SAPS;
various NPOs (SANCA, Lifeline, Bara Psychiatric Unit, Teddy Bear Clinic and Grassroots Soccer SA); and ordinary community
members doing awareness campaigns about issues impacting on children.
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From Left: Sungulani, Nthabiseng, Thobisani,
Vuledzani, Nomsa and Lethokuhle

Highlights:
• The Soweto LEADers group were all elected to class captains and monitors after the programme; and the same Leaders
established a food garden at their school.
• In the Child Development Programme, one girl was elected to represent children on the Dignity Dreams Foundation
platform.
• We can now refer directly to the Psychiatric Unit at the hospital for an immediate appointment and the clients do not have
to go via the local clinic.
• The end-of-year party hosted for all clients, compliments of Wild Spear Spur (Jabulani Mall) and presents from Investec
Capital Bank, was a source of great fun for all.
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Childline Diepsloot Community-based Centre
The office is based on the premises of Afrika Tikkun in Diepsloot and is our newest CCBC. We have only one social worker
delivering services. This is a highly volatile community, made up of many people migrating from the rural areas and our northern
neighbouring countries, with many challenges. The negative media attention to this area has resulted in many government
departments and NGOs working together to address issues of violence, which has had a positive impact on the community.
Diepsloot Social Work
Co-ordinator:

Previously: Nokwazi Dlamini (BA Hons Social Work)
Currently: Margaret Singo (BA Social Work)

Our lone social worker achieved exceptional results:
920 counselling sessions; 7 psychosocial groups; and 7 awareness and
prevention events reaching 4 194 community members.
The highest category of clients in Diepsloot is children presenting with
behavioural problems, rape and family problems.

Nokwazi

6 therapeutic groups were facilitated with survivors of sexual abuse
using the Tree of Life therapeutic model. The aims of these groups
included healing, developing mutual support, as well as understanding
the psychological impact of sexual abuse, and increasing advocacy for
children in the criminal justice process. This was a very powerful and
transformational process demonstrated by one child who returned
to relate to the social worker how the healing she experienced as a
result of the group had resulted in her achieving distinctions at school.

A total of 12 networking sessions were held. This office is supported by the Nelson Mandela Children’s Fund (SeVISSA Partnership
– focusing on gender-based violence - with Afrika Tikkun, Sonke Gender Justice, EWET, POWA and the Diepsloot Youth Project).
In addition, we worked with SANCA, SADAG, Witkoppen Clinic, Lawyers vs Abuse, Departments of Social Development, Labour,
Education, Home Affairs, Community Safety and Health, NPA and the ward counsellor’s office. These partnerships have made
a very positive contribution to services and awareness in the community.
During Child Protection Week and 16 Days of Activism, together with above-mentioned stakeholders, 7 schools and a number
of churches were visited. As a collective, we also hosted events at the Afrika Tikkun Wings of Life Centre reaching a total of 4
194 community members with presentations on child rights and responsibilities and preventative messages regarding genderbased violence. One of the outstanding community events during 16 Days of Activism involved women and children being
invited to paint t-shirts with messages from their hearts to stop gender based violence. These were hung on a line visible to
the public and conveyed very powerful sentiments.
Highlights:
• In December, Investec and Centurion Spur restaurant hosted a Christmas party for the Diepsloot clients. Very few of those
children had ever been to a restaurant, let alone received a Christmas gift. In our social worker, Nokwazi’s words, “While I had
already formed a relationship with all of them during therapy, I had never seen these children outside the therapy setting.
The group was made up of children with a wide range of challenges, including behavioural problems, grief, trauma and
child abuse. Seeing those children interacting with each other and comparing the difference and change in their behaviour
and self-confidence from the first time that I had met them was really an amazing experience. I really came to appreciate
the impact that therapy has on each individual we work with.”
• The opening of the long awaited police station in March 2016 will make the social worker’s work much easier in making
sure that cases are opened and investigated, contributing to successful conviction of perpetrators.
• The end of year party for all clients’ compliments of Eagle Rock Spur (Centurion) and presents from Investec Capital Bank,
brought much cheer and delight.
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Childline Johannesburg Inner City Community-based Centre
The Childline office is based in the Children’s Memorial Institute and is situated in close proximity to the inner city of Johannesburg
serving many disadvantaged communities experiencing a myriad of social problems. The area is populated with people
migrating from rural areas and neighbouring countries and is a high-density urban space with a minimal sense of community.
There are a number of services available enabling positive referrals for our clients.
The Inner City Team:
Inner City Co-ordinating Social Worker

Nozizwe Matibiri (BA Hons Social Work)

Inner City Social Worker

Margaret Bouwer (BA Hons Social Work)

CAPP Social Worker/Trainer

Gail Tlomatsana (BA Hons Social Work)

CAPP Counsellor/Co-Facilitator

Phakeme Mahlangu (BA Hons Psych)

Interns Assisting with CAPP

Wandile Shabangu
Success Mhlongo

Student Social Workers

Thobeka Sibisi (4th Year Social Work – UJ)

Administrator

Previously: Esther Mukhwevo
Currently: Precious Tshabalala

Housekeeper

Sylvia Phiri
This team made a significant impact on children’s lives:

From left: Nozizwe, Gail, Margaret, Bulelwa, Precious
and Phakeme

• The Counselling team achieved 1 216 counselling sessions;
facilitated 27 psychosocial group sessions; and a child development
programme
• The CAPP team completed school talks programmes in 11 schools,
reaching 6 786 children and 223 educators. They also visited 12
crèches, reaching 514 children and 12 of their caregivers/teachers.
5 Positive Parenting workshops and 1 parenting talk were done,
reaching 134 parents in the community. In addition, the CAPP
team completed 1 LEADers group (16 sessions) and 1 holiday
programme (5 days) during this period
• Together, the Inner City team reached 2 717 community members
during various community outreach events, as well as campaigns
such as Child Protection Week and 16 Days of

The highest categories for counselling clients in the inner city are behavioural problems, followed by bullying and rape. In
brief counselling sessions held during the CAPP school talks programmes, the three highest categories were bullying, sexual
abuse and family relationship problems.
Clinical Social workers facilitated 27 psychosocial group sessions with: children presenting with behavioural problems from
Ennerdale doing the Hero Book Programme; Khakibos Children’s Centre boys learning anger management skills; and an
entrepreneurial skills group with the Sunlight Safe House children.
6 Child Development group sessions were offered to OVCs from Rhema Children’s Home who were victims of abuse and had
low self-esteem, coupled with behavioural problems. The impact of the programme was profound and greatly appreciated
by the children and the home.
29 Networking sessions were held with our partners, including; Johannesburg Child Protection Forum, Departments of Social
Development, Community Safety, Education, SAPS, the Child Justice Forum, Charlotte Maxeke Johannesburg Academic
Hospital, Hillbrow Medico-Legal Clinic, Khakibos Shelter, Rainbow Children’s Village, Rhema Church, Action Breaks Silence
and the Best Life for Every Child Coalition.
Highlights:
• Raising awareness on the issues of child abuse, cyber bullying and available services in conjunction with the Johannesburg
Child Protection Forum at the Newlands Community Centre, Ennerdale Primary School and Joubert Park
• A young boy from the Congo experienced bullying and victimisation at school, and was then beaten by his father as a
result. He was suspended from school when he tried to defend himself. After 6 counselling sessions he is more assertive
and has learnt more appropriate anger management skills. He is looking forward to going to secondary school next year
and his resilience, despite it all, is inspiring
• At the end-of-year party for all clients, compliments of Falcon Peak Spur (Carlton Centre) and presents supplied by Investec
Capital Bank, it was inspiring to see how much children with such difficulties could still enjoy themselves.
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Childline Sebokeng Community-based Centre
Our office is based at the Emfuleni Municipality and engages with clients from the Sedibeng region, which is characterised by
a strong community spirit while experiencing many social ills. The Department of Social Development plays a great leadership
role in ensuring the development of NGOs and CBOs.
The Sebokeng Team:
Sebokeng Co-Ordinating Social Worker

Mirriam Bucibo ( BA Hons Social Work)

Counselling Social Worker

Jabulile Ndlandla (BA Hons Social Work) – Once a week

CAPP Social Worker

Nthabiseng Mokebe (BA Hons Social Work)

CAPP Counsellor

Busisiwe Dube (BA Social Work in progress)

Reception/Administrator

Tsholofelo Mothibe (Social Auxiliary Work)
(Previously Maria Miga)

Student Social Workers

Nthabiseng Sebusi (case work)
Mookgo Letanta (group work and community work)

The Sebokeng team has achieved outstanding results this year:
• The Counselling team offered: 1 071 counselling sessions and 2 psychosocial groups
• The CAPP team completed: the school talks programme in 18 schools, reaching 10 490 children and 167 educators; visited
14 crèches, reaching 361 children and their 62 caregivers/teachers; increased their reach to parents this year, completing
9 Positive Parenting workshops and 4 parenting talks, thus empowering 385 parents in the community; and completed 1
LEADers group (16 sessions)and 1 Holiday Programme (5 days)
• Together, the Sebokeng team, working closely with the DSD and other forums in the region, reached 7 523 adults and
children during community outreach events, as well as campaigns such as Child Protection Week and 16 Days of Activism
In Sebokeng, the highest categories for counselling cases are behavioural problems, followed by death and bereavement
and rape. In brief counselling sessions held during the CAPP school talks programmes, the three highest categories were
bullying, physical abuse and sexual abuse.
The clinical social worker, together with the students, ran a parenting group focusing on positive parenting skills: self-care,
different parenting styles, child development and feelings, age appropriate discipline, building self-esteem, communication,
problem solving skills and protecting children from abuse, addiction and technology.
13 Sessions of the Child Development Group were hosted at Ipetseng Primary School with children who were HIV+ and the
feedback from teachers was exceptionally positive.
11 Networking sessions were held with the Department of Social Development Child Protection Forum, Thuthuzela One Stop
Centre, Alliance for Street Children, Child Welfare, Mental Health, Legal Services, Departments of Education, Health and Home
Affairs, SAPS, Alfa Trauma Centre, Lifeline and all relevant stakeholders.
Highlights:
• The 16 Days of Activism events with numerous
stakeholders (SAPS, Departments of Social
Development, Home Affairs, Education and
SASSA) involving presentations and mobile
services in schools. They registered children for
IDs and grants; gave information to caregivers
on accessing services; and SAPS gave a talk
about abuse, encouraging the learners to report
such issues. The Sebokeng auxiliary social
worker was elected as the deputy chairperson
of the Forum after the event
• A slot at Vaal University Technicon FM about the
issues of child protection addressing about 52
000 listeners
• The end-of-year party for all clients, compliments
of El Paso Spur (Vanderbijlpark) and presents
from Investec Capital Bank. The children were
so appreciative and had so much fun.
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From left:
Tsholofelo, Nthabiseng M,
Busisiwe, and Mirriam.

Childline Katlehong City Community-based Centre
Our office is based at the Ramokonopi Multipurpose Centre in Katlehong, along with other NGOs, as a one-stop centre for
child-related issues. The Katlehong office serves the Katorus area (Katlehong, Thokoza and Vosloorus), where there is a strong
sense of community and support.
The Katlehing Team:
Katorus Co-ordinating Social Worker

Thabile Nxumalo (BA Hons Social Work)

CAPP Social Worker

Gift Matjia (BA Hons Social Work)

CAPP Counsellor

Themba Mkhize (Social Auxiliary Work)

Reception/Administrator

Pride Nzibande (Social Auxiliary Work)

Student Social Workers

Thumeka Mangcipu – UNISA
The Katlehong team achieved great results this year:
• The Counselling team achieved 1 520 counselling sessions and 8 group
sessions
• The CAPP team completed: the school talks programme at 16 schools,
reaching 16 138 children and 251 educators (439 of these children came
forward for brief counselling); visits to 25 crèches, reaching 1 238 children
and 107 of the caregivers/teachers; 2 Positive Parenting workshops and
14 parenting talks at clinics for 1 967 parents; and, 1 LEADers group (16
sessions)
• Together, the Katlehong team facilitated a Child Development Group of
12 sessions and reached 2 315 adults and children through community
outreach activities and campaigns such as Child Protection Week and
16 Days of Activism

From left: Thabile, Pride, Gift and Themba

The highest category in Katlehong’s clinical case load has shifted, and is
now behavioural problems, followed by emotional abuse and death and
bereavement. In brief counselling sessions held during the CAPP school
talks programmes, the three highest categories were bullying, physical
abuse and emotional abuse.

The Katlehong clinical social worker ran a therapeutic group for teenagers with behavioural problems to build self-confidence,
promote self-awareness and strengthen their ambitions so that they can look forward their future.
12 Sessions of the Child Development Programme were offered to Ntokozo Primary School for OVCs with behavioural and
bullying problems. The feedback from teachers and parents was very positive: the OVCs were initially uncontrollable, but by
the end of the sessions, the youth were behaving normally and were very respectful and positive. The school and their families
were very happy and requested that we return to assist another group.
44 Networking sessions with all relevant stakeholders were held with: The Katlehong Intersectoral Child Protection Forum;
Tshepong Stimulation Centre; Isibindi; Taxi Association; Snethemba ANC Youth League; Child Welfare; Khanya Family Centre;
POWA; Kids Clinic; and, the Departments of Social Development, Education, Health, Community Safety and SAPS. These forums
allow for appropriate and easy referral and co-operation between all service providers.
Chubby Chums donates food for this community which we are able to distribute to our clients.
Highlights:
• During Mandela Day the team entertained 75 children and parents who were provided with a healthy meal, food parcels
and clothes to take home donated by local people, shops and tavern owners
• They also conducted 7 home visits to child-headed families to support them with information, groceries and assistance
with cleaning their premises during Mandela Month. The children were touched by the kindness shown to them
• The Katlehong office is involved in the Katlehong Intersectoral Forum and our social auxiliary worker holds the position of
Deputy Chairperson
• Radio talk on the community station, Kasi FM, with about 700 000 listeners, during 16 Days of Activism
• The end-of-year party for all clients, compliments Little Eagle Spur (Alberton) and presents from Investec Capital Bank,
presented a happy and memorable day.
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Childline Tembisa Community-based Centre
Our office in Tembisa is situated in the Rabasoto Municipal Centre and we have a good working relationship with the Ekurhuleni
Municipality who provides office space pro bono. The office is very central, close to the Tembisa Court, SAPS and clinics,
enabling easy referrals. The cases dealt with in Tembisa are often violent and we are grateful that a serial rapist has recently
been caught and sentenced after terrorising this community.
The Tembisa Team:
Tembisa Co-Ordinating Social Worker

Shonani Mhlanga (BA Hons Social Work)

Counselling Social Worker

Evon Mokoena (BA Hons Social Work)
Previously Margaret Singo (BA Hons Social Work)

CAPP Social Worker

Tsakani Muhlari (BA Hons Social Work) – resigned in November

CAPP Counsellor

Lindo Mkhize

Administrator

Refilwe Masilela (Social Auxiliary Work)

Pepfarintern

Ntwanano Ngwetjana (BA Hons Psych)

The Tembisa team made a very positive impact
this year:
• The Counselling team completed 1 702 counselling
sessions and 12 groups sessions
• The CAPP team completed: the school talks programme
at 10 schools, reaching 10 423 children and 164
educators; visited 30 crèches, reaching 698 children
and 47 of their teachers; the LEADers programme
(16 sessions), and Positive Parenting workshops were
attended by 14 of the LEADers’ parents
• Together the Tembisa team reached a total of 3 208
people (1 350 adults and 1 858 children) through
community outreach events and campaigns such as
Child Protection Week and 16 Days of Activism

From left: Ntwanano, Lindo, Evon, Bridget, Shonani and Refilwe

The highest category in the Tembisa clinical case load is rape, followed by behavioural problems and death and bereavement.
In brief counselling sessions held during the CAPP school talks programmes, the three highest categories were bullying,
physical abuse and sexual abuse.
12 Group sessions were offered at a residential camp in Magaliesburg, in conjunction with Isibindi, with young girl survivors
of sexual abuse. This was a very powerful healing and transformational process for these young OVCs.
10 Child Development Programme sessions were hosted at Arekopaneng Hospice with children whose parents are bedridden,
causing them to experience maternal deprivation. Their belief in themselves and their ability to overcome these difficult
circumstances improved and touched the hearts of all.
We had 23 Networking sessions and have good relationships with the Tembisa Forum; the Thuthuzela Care Centre (NPA, the
Criminal Justice system, Departments of Social Development, Education and Health, Ekurhuleni Metro, Drug and Alcohol
Centre, Nicro and POWA); and all child protection stakeholders (such as Tembisa Child Care Centre, Arebaokeng Hospice,
EMPD - Fire Safety) and we do effective community activation events together. One outstanding community event during
Child Protection Week was hosted at the courts where each organisation set up a stall and held public talks regarding the
prevention of child abuse.
Highlights:
• The team successfully held Child Protection Week events at: Swazinn BP filling station, distributing pamphlets and talking to adults
filling their cars; awareness raising at the Tembisa police station, schools and Pick ‘n Pay centre talking to adults and children. They
received positive feedback from the schools and the other stakeholders
• Positive feedback was received from the educators regarding the Child Development Programme they ran at a school to improve
the social skills and self-esteem of participants. They were requested to come back and run the programme with another set of
children as there is a strong need for such programmes
• During 16 Days of Activism they visited schools and the Tembisa Hospital raising awareness on women and child abuse and these
sessions were very well received
• The end-of-year party for all clients, compliments Chatoga Spur (Kempton Park) and presents from Investec Capital Bank, was a
great deal of fun for all; and the children inspired us by their ability to enjoy themselves despite everything they have been through.
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Childline Orange Farm Community-based Centre
Our office is situated in the Arekopaneng Youth Centre Afrika Tikkun premises in Orange Farm, and this fairly new office
is becoming more well-known in the area with positive relationships with clinics, the Disability Forum and government
departments. Service delivery protests, which are often violent and the many social ills, especially poverty, present serious
challenges in the area.
The Orange Farm Team:
Orange Farm Co-ordinating Social Worker

Maserame Hellen Dzibana (BA Hons Social Work)

Administrator

Chantelle Lelala (Social Auxiliary Work)
Previously Puseletso Mokoena (Social Auxiliary Work)

Students

Doris Mpashi (Social Auxiliary Work)
Palesa Sesuba (Social Work – UNISA)
Nomsa Jase (Social Work – UNISA)

From left: Chantelle and Maserame
Our very small Orange Farm team with 1 social worker and 1 social auxiliary worker accomplished much this year:
•
•
•
•

893 counselling sessions
16 therapeutic group sessions
8 child development group sessions
12 events reaching 3 363 children and 1 000 adults

Behavioural problems followed by rape and death and bereavement were the highest categories in Orange Farm.
The 2 therapeutic groups were: a week long Isibindi residential programme for victims of sexual abuse and their caregivers,
which was very powerful; and a group for parents to empower them with positive parenting skills.
16 Networking sessions with all relevant stakeholders: DSD Child Protection Forum; Victim Empowerment Forum, Mbalenhle
Community Health Centre; Departments of Education and Health; People with Disabilities Forum; and, Weilers Farm Clinic
(where we offer counselling services once per week).
The child development programme was offered to Reamohetswe Primary School for a group of OVCs with tragic poverty
issues, low self-esteem and behavioural problems and demonstrated radically positive changes in terms of their creativity,
confidence and openness.
Highlights:
• The social worker has established very good relations with the drop-in centres in Orange Farm for mutual referral of clients.
• The Child Protection Week events were done in partnership with health workers at the clinics, raising awareness on children’s
issues, breast cancer and healthy eating.
• The team went out with Meals on Wheels and addressed adults on the issue of domestic violence and the impact it has on
children.
• During the 16 Days of Activism there were events at the Thiboloha drop-in centre, schools and Stretford Clinic, raising
awareness on child abuse and its impact on children.
• Wheelers Farm residents are very grateful for our counselling services on a weekly basis.  This area is beset with problems,
especially teenage pregnancy,‘sugar daddy’syndrome and drug/alcohol abuse. Parents participate actively to seek solutions
to their family problems.
• The end-of-year party for all clients, compliments Eagle Spear Spur (Lenasia) and presents from Investec Capital Bank,
ensured that our children enjoyed a fun-filled day.
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TRAINING
Head of department

Gita Dennen (BA Hons Psychology; Master’s Diploma Play Therapy)

Facilitator

Gail Tlomatsana (BA Social Work)

Co-Facilitator

Phakeme Mahlangu (BA Hons Psych)

The Training Department offers training internally and externally to professionals and laypersons who work with children, as
well as parents and caregivers in the community. The department saves Childline a substantial amount of money that would
otherwise be spent on training, and is also a source of some income for Childline. The funds raised through paid-for training
are channelled straight into the organisation and therefore contribute to the services all projects provide for children.
In 2015-16 our CAPP teams facilitated 72 presentations for 1 121 educators. In addition, they facilitated 23 Positive Parenting
workshops, empowering 419 parents and caregivers (see in CAPP report above).
Our training team conducted 22 other workshops of varying length and complexity for 446 adults, including staff members,
volunteers, educators, community caregivers, and other professionals and non-professionals working with children. All of
these adults improved their knowledge and skills, enabling them to contribute to a culture of child rights in South Africa.
We continue to share our training with the network, through Childline SA, who submitted various workshops for accreditation
with SACSSP for CPD points.
The following training and development were rendered to community, staff and volunteers by our Training Team:
72 x Teachers’ Presentation/Workshop: Child Abuse and Disclosure

1 121 Educators

23 x Positive Parenting Workshops

419 Parents/Caregivers

46 x Parenting Talks

3 737 Parents/Caregivers

2 x HDA – Thogomelo Project: Child Protection Skills Development
Programme – Training for supervisors of Community Caregivers
(NW Province -Potchefstroom)

40 Supervisors and Caregivers

6 x Child Abuse and Disclosure Workshops

9 ECD Teachers, Parents & Volunteers
62 Lifeline and other Stakeholders
6 ECD Teachers, Parents & Volunteers
13 St Nicholas Children’s Home
10 Rhema Children’s Home
20 Johannesburg Children’s Hhome

Common Behavioural Disorders in Childhood

82 NAPTOSA Members (Educators)

Introduction to Basic Counselling Skills for Interns

7 FPD Interns

Court Preparation & Support for Child Victims

17 Childline Staff Members

Common Behavioural Disorders in Childhood

30 Childline Staff Members

Care Givers Training & Mentoring

4 Rainbow Children’s Village Caregivers

Introduction to Basic Counselling Skills for Interns

12 FPD Interns

2 x Positive Discipline in Classroom

76 NAPTOSA Members (Educators)

Child Protection Workshop (British Council)

11 ITC Facilitators

STAFF TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT
Childline Gauteng is mindful of the responsibility to ensure the best possible treatment and care for all children, and to this
end, the development and training of staff members are vital. On-going professional development is also a requirement to
retain registration with the various professional boards. Most of the training, workshops and presentations attended by staff
members were at no cost to the organisation, for which we are very grateful. In addition, Childline Gauteng now submits an
Annual Training Report (ATR) and Workplace Skills Plan (WSP) to the Health and Welfare SETA, which means we are eligible
for discretionary grants that are made available for upskilling staff members.
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Training was attended by various staff members, interns and volunteers on the following topics:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Court Preparation & Support for Child Victims (10 CPD Points)
Eating Disorders – Dr Nkokone Tema
Introduction to Cognitive Behavioural Therapy  (Gillian Solomon)
Presence and Confidence in Communication( Caryn Katz)
Zakheni Firemaker Training – Mentoring
The Children’s Act - CLSA (5 CPD points)
The Sexual Offences Act – CLSA (5 CPD points)
The Child Justice Act - CLSA (5 CPD points)
An Introduction to Basic Counselling Skills (for interns)
Common Behavioural Disorders in Childhood (8 CPD points)
Employment Equity (attended by the newly formed EE committee)
Positive Discipline in Classroom
Implementing Child Justice Act 75 0f 2008 (Child Justice Inter-sectorial Training)
Excel Training (a discretionary grant was received for this training from the HWSETA)
WSP/ATR Workshop - HWSETA

NETWORKING
Networking meetings were held with the following entities to ensure better collaboration and improved services for children:
•

Afrika Tikkun

•

Hands of Compassion

•

Nelson Mandela Children’s fund

•

Child Justice Forum Child
Protection Committees

•

HPCSA

•

POWA

•

HSRC

•

SABC

•

Child Welfare

•

Impilo

•

SADAG

•

Chris Hani/ Baragwanath Hospital

•

SANCA

Chubby Chums

Charlotte Maxeke JHB Academic
Hospital

•

•

•

SAPS and VEP Centres

•

Human Rights Commission

•

JISS

•

SASA

•

CMR

•

•

•

Dept. of Community Safety

Justice sector strengthening
programme

SASSA (Dept. of Home Affairs –
documents and grants)

•

Dept. of Education

•

Kanya (Katlehong)

•

School of Yoga

•

Dept. of Home Affairs

•

Kidz Clinic

•

St Nicholas

•

Dept. of Social Development

•

Lifeline

•

Tara Hospital

•

EWET

•

Medico-Legal

•

The Teddy Bear Clinic

•

FAMSA

•

Mental Health

•

Thusanani

•

FCS forum

•

Narcotics Anonymous

•

Wits Law Clinic

•

Grant-in-Aid

•

National Children & Violence Trust

MARKETING
Childline Gauteng’s marketing campaigns aim to raise our collective consciousness with regard to the importance of children
and their inherent right to be treated with love and respect and their responsibility to assist their families and communities.
Childline SA continues to advocate and lobby for children’s rights. Dumisile Nala, our National CEO, represents Childline on
many national and international forums. On a provincial level, we hope for the reinstatement of Gauteng Children’s Rights
Committee, which was a dynamic network of government and non-government organisations committed to ushering in a
rights-based province.
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Childline Gauteng has developed bold multi-media marketing campaigns, which have as their primary aim the promotion of
a child rights orientated society. Media partners, Commuter TV, Media Talk and Mindset Health, have ensured that our social
marketing messages regarding children were widely distributed:
• The girl child campaign, Noah - Love Me, Love Me Not, continues to be screened, compliments of our partnership with
Media Talk and Mindset Health. This inspiring message to children and adults has drawn many compliments
• Our patron, the Most Reverend Desmond Tutu, Archbishop Emeritus of Cape Town, recorded a series of inspirational
messages with a stirring call for support for Childline’s work
• The “Abangani Abakhulu Babantwana” (Big Friends of Children) campaign continued this year. The name was chosen by
the Katlehong LEADers who indicated that they needed to know that the adult generation would serve as Big Friends to
all children
• Childline Gauteng’s online presence is growing steadily.  You can now find Childline Gauteng on Facebook and can follow
us on Twitter. Our beautiful and inviting website designed by Net#workBBDO is still generously hosted by E2. Visit us on
www.childlinegauteng.org.za
• We are also the proud owners of a new on-line shop where we sell “childhood memories”. Members of the public have the
opportunity to buy special memories for the children at Childline. Please visit our shop at shop.childline.org.za
Childline is in the fortunate position of being supported by many marketing partners: Net#workBBDO advertising agency,
SABC, ETV, DSDT, Media Talk, Mindset Health, E2, PEAC, Majestic Interactive, Commuter TV, and Springleap.
Our marketing partners have continued to assist us to advertise the Childline services and to develop our campaigns to increase
public awareness of children’s rights. They continue to inspire us with their vision for a child-centred society and their endless
creativity and enthusiasm. Our special thanks to all who have gone beyond the call of duty to offer time and expertise to
ensure that the need for Childline’s services remains foremost in the public arena.
Media opportunities
Sowetan 				
Child Rape, Child Protection Week And Children’s Act
Radio Pulpit 			
16 Days
Citizen 				
Matric Exams, Matric Support
West Coast Radio 			
Matric Support
Rosebank Gazette 		
Childline Services
Saturday Star 			
Sunlight Safe House Services
Drum 				Alcohol Abuse
Islam International 		
Child Suicide
Letrole Setchabo/Eye Of The Nation
Disability
New Nation 			
Teen Pregnancy
Caxton 				
Childline AGM
New Age 				Gangs
Aljazeera
Unisa Radio 			
Childline Services
ENews 				
Madiba Day
702 				
Child Marriages
Alberton Record
Southern Courier
Camaro Chronicle
Vaal University Radio Station 		
Child Protection Week
Wifi TV 				
Parenting Skills And Bullying
This year, we have continued to focus on developing our following on social media, namely Facebook and Twitter. Posts are
made on our Facebook page approximately 5 times per week. We now have 680 “likes” for our page, and each post reaches
between 100 and 1 200 people, informing them of our activities and events, providing positive parenting tips, as well as
inspirational messages for parents. We post approximately 4 tweets per week on Twitter, and we now have 2 010 followers.
We use this social media platform to inform followers of our activities and events, current news items, and online resources
available to parents. We also support and thank funders and donors through both Facebook and Twitter.
In February 2016, Childline Gauteng began a partnership with the Communications Department of the University of
Johannesburg, and there will be a number of student-led projects throughout 2016 that will utilise social media platforms to
extend our reach, raise awareness about our services, and spread positive parenting messages, as well as hopefully help us to
increase funding from individual donors.
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SUPPORT SERVICES
Administration/M&E/Finance/Resource Mobilisation/Human Resources
Admin Team

Glenis Kay; Esther Mukwevho (previously); Precious Tshabalala, Masello Molefi.

M&E

Previously – Capacitate Social Solutions

Volunteer Finance Adviser

Clive Fletcher (CA)

Volunteer Treasurer

Olivier Barbeau (CA)

HR

Andries Maphala, Fair Labour Practise and Lynne Pretorius

Consultant Accountants

Alison Mac Vey & Iain Holdsworth (BCom)

Payroll Consultant

Alison Mac Vey

Resource Mobilisers

Angela Bishop, Suzette Beaumont

We acknowledge the outstanding work our administrative team has done this year to ensure that the financial and administrative
infrastructure continues to support the social service of the organisation.
Monitoring and Evaluation
Monitoring and Evaluation (M&E) is a very important part of any development programme and is of special importance to
programme donors, in that it allows programme leaders to assess the progress and achievements made against programme
aims and objectives.
Childline Gauteng runs monitoring and evaluation systems for all programmes and projects implemented by the organisation.
Logical frameworks (log frames) and M&E tools are in place for each project. We set up an electronic data capturing system
(EpiInfo) for all of our services with the assistance of Chris Hamlyn, of Capacitate Social Solutions. Unfortunately, with our
shortfall in funding, we were obliged to terminate the contract with Capacitate at the end of February 2016.
Amanda Mthembu, a Pepfar M&E intern, added great value to our M&E processes.
Supervision, consultation and file checking is provided throughout all projects. All training and workshops are evaluated by
participants, and the LEADers programme is evaluated by the participants, their teachers and their parents. Feedback is used
to make improvements to the material and the delivery thereof.
Resource Mobilisation
As a civil society and service delivery organisation, Childline is primarily dependent on funding. Given the nature of our work,
the age and vulnerability of the children we serve - opportunities for financial self-sustainment remain limited.
Childline Gauteng is aware of the rapidly changing funding environment; and as a result fell short of our income target.
We restructured the organisation to streamline processes, improve efficiency and reduce overheads to bring our budget more
in line with what we can realistically expect to fundraise each year. Despite the challenges, Childline was able to grow its support
base, for which we are extremely grateful. The past year has also been very encouraging, especially with the organisation taking
on new opportunities to broaden our income streams.
The Training Department developed courses that have been registered for CPD points for social and social auxiliary workers. We
were successful in taking on paying contracts with DOE and FPB as reported earlier. We have continued our partnership with
Mzansi Recycling, an initiative to recycle cartridges. Second-hand shops such as Hospice and Bounty Hunters sell second-hand
goods for us, and we receive a steady income from My School/My Village and the donation tins at the Sweets From Heaven shops.
Many people and organisations have provided material, emotional, financial
and skills-based support and we honour each and every one of you who has
given according to your means. We consider you all part of the extended
Childline Gauteng community. Your generosity is overwhelming and we
pay special tribute to our donors that offer multi-year funding agreements;
enabling us to sustain our services in the interests of the children we serve.
Childline is focused on our vision and has proved resilient for 29 years;
and continues to deliver our expertise year on year. We sincerely thank
our generous partners for their investment in the children of Gauteng,
and for providing them with a brighter future.
Angela and Suzette
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FRIENDS AND PARTNERS
Donations-in-kind:
Abi-Gail Teasdale
Afrika Tikkun
		
Alison Mc Vey
		
Andile Stofile
Angela Bishop
Annette Brits
Apparel Experts
Avanti Coffee
Azteca Mexican Products
Ballet School
Barbeau family
Barmotion
Bidvest
BitCo
Biz Kidz
Breco Seafoods
Brescia House
Builders Massmart
Candy Tops
Carolyn Steyn
Caryn Katz
Centillion Trading
Chatoga Spur
Commuta TV
Chubby Chums
Da La Salle Holy Cross School
David Haigh
Des Whitehead
Digby & Denise Jennings
Dr. Tema
DSM Nutritional
Dynamic Brands
Eagle Rock Spur
Eagle Spear Spur
Edenvale Ballet Academy
Edutain Distribution
Ekurhuleni Metro
Elna Redelinghuys
Enuyko Construction
Epic Foundation (Alta)
Estuary Media
Ethne Whitney
EVS - BBBEE Certificate
Fair Labour
Falcon Peak Spur
For Good UBER Campaign
Foundation for Graduates Inst.
Frances Sutton
Futhi Mathebula
Future Life
George
Gillian Soloman
Glamcam
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Godfrey
Gourmet Fudge
Grace Factory
Green Robot
Greenstone Mall
Hazel Farber
Health In Site
Helen Mattisson
Hoy P Loy
Intershu
Investec - CSI
Investec Capital Bank
Investec ICIB
J.B. Rivers
Jetline Blackheath
Jo’burg Theatre
Jocelyn Jardine
Joey Burke - Golndustry DoveBid
John Rolloson
Johnson & Johnson
Justin Dennis
Gita Dennen
Kagiso Media
Khota Family
Kingsmead College
Kit Group Staff
Labyrinth Nursery
Linda Fiebiger
Lineo Rabotapi
Linsey Sherman
Little Eagle Spur
Lodestone Brands
Lungile Zondi
Lupo Bakery
Majestic Digital (Jani Bouwer)
Makers
McCain Foods
Melanie Esterhuizen
Michelle Engelberg
Michelle Rigby & Friends
Midland Group/Meat
Mister Sweet
Moore Stephens
MP Marketing
MTN
Mulo - Love to do Good
Multidex
Natural Sales Company
Nedbank
Neo Morake
Net#workBBDO
Nhlamulo Tlakula
Nick Dennis
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Out There SA
Palama Productions
Panarottis Pizza Pasta - Spur Group
Penguin Random House Publishers
Peter Coldrey
Ponse Pule
Porcupine Ridge Wines
RCL Foods Consumer
Retail Brands Inter Africa
Rhodes Food Group Holdings
Right to Care
Rishadh Mahabeer
Rivers Group
Robyn Botha
Roedean School
Santa’s Shoebox
Santam
Sappi
Sedibeng Metro
Seven Eagles Spur –Greenstone Mall
Shaista
Shanice Manamela
Sharise Weiner
Sharon – Merchants
Silver Star T-Shirts
Simon Smith
SMOKE Staff
Spring Leap
St. Katherine School for Girls
Steph Kleyn
Stockland Property
Stuttaford Van Lines
Susan Houghton
Telkom Foundation
The Teddy Bear Clinic
The Kit Group
The Whiskey Brothers
Theona Ballyram
Thomas O’ Connor
Tinashe Venge
TNS Global
Tshebo Mokoena – What 4
Tumi Moti
Vertex Solutions
Vivienne Davidoff
Vodacom Foundation
Warm the World
Wild Spear Spur
Wits University
Zakheni Arts Therapy Foundation
Zoe Khumalo & Toma

Financial Contributors:
ABSA Employee Giving
Africa Tikkun (First for Women)
Africa Tikkun (MNCF SeVISSA)
Airports Company South Africa
(ORTIA)
Anglo American Chairman’s Fund
B Pietersen
Barbeau O
Beare Johnathan
Beaumont S
Beba
Bidvest
Bishop A
Bounty Hunter’s
Brom B
Calendar Sales
Cash Convertors
Childline SA
Clairbourne Thomas
Davidoff V
Davids G
Dimension Data
EGT Trading
Ernst & Young
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Eskom Dev
Films & Publication
Fluxmans
Fuchs Foundation
Government DSD
H Evertsen Trust
Hammon
HCI
Hospice
Investec
Jet Lee Main Charity
Katz C
Kirkney Family Trust/Kirkness
Lamprecht Leon
Lifeline
Ludwigs Roses
Mackenzi Foundation
Magubane M
Martins H
Mineral Waterman
Moephuli D
My school
NAPTOSA
Neuhoff S
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NLDTF Arts & Culture
Online purchases
Out There
Paintcor
Paul Loewenstein Charitable Edu.
Trust
Peermont-Emperor’s Palace
Pink Mosquito
R.B. Hagart Trust
Rainbow Village
Robert Niven Trust
Rome D
Sale of Goods/Auction/67 Mins
Sasol
Seren Design Ltd
Soul City
Thandi
Tiber Bonvec
Training
Triangle Administrators
Unilever
United Church School
US Embassy

Childline Gauteng NPC
(Registration number 2015/173593/08)
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Directors’ Responsibilities and Approval
The directors’ are required by the Companies Act 71 of 2008, to maintain adequate accounting records and are responsible
for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and related financial information included in this report.
It is their responsibility to ensure that the annual financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the company as
at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended, in conformity
with International Financial Reporting Standards for Small and Medium Sized Entities. The external auditors are engaged
to express an independent opinion on the annual financial statements.
The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards for Small
and Medium Sized Entities and are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by
reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.
The directors’ acknowledges that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established
by the organisation and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the
director’s to meet these responsibilities, the board sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error
or loss in a cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined
framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk.
These controls are monitored throughout the organisation and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical
standards in ensuring the organisation’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above
reproach. The focus of risk management in the organisation is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all
known forms of risk across the organisation. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the organisation endeavours
to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and
managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.
The directors’ are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of
internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the
annual financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.
The directors’ has reviewed the organisation’s cash flow forecast for the year from the date of approval of this report and,
in the light of this review and the current financial position, they are satisfied that the organisation has or has access to
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
The external auditors are responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the organisation’s annual financial
statements. The annual financial statements have been examined by the organisation’s external auditors and their report
presented on page 5.
The annual financial statements set out on page 7-16, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were
approved by the directors’ on 23 June 2016, and were signed on its behalf:

________________________________			________________________________
Director							Director
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Director’s Report
The directors’ have pleasure in submitting their report on the annual financial statements of Childline Gauteng NPC for the
year ended 31 March 2016.
1. Nature of business
Childline Gauteng NPC was incorporated in South Africa with interests in the Non-profit industry. The company operates in
South Africa.
The organisation is engaged in child welfare and operates principally in South Africa.
The operating results and state of affairs of the organisation are fully set out in the attached annual financial statements and
do not in our opinion require any further comment.
During the current year, the company has expanded its investment portfolio into the property market.
2. Review of financial results and activities
The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards for
Small and Medium Sized Entities and the requirements of the Companies Act 71 of 2008. The accounting policies have
been applied consistently compared to the prior year, except for the adoption of new or revised accounting standards.
3. Directors’
The directors of the organisation during the year and to date of this report are as follows:
Director’

Changes

Andile Stofile
Anne Letsebe
Annette Brokensha

Resigned 30 October 2015

Clive Fletcher
Digby Jennings

Resigned 29 February 2016

Gillian Stern
Lynnette Cawood
Nick Dennis
Olivier Barbeau
Oscar Lockwood
Prelene Schmidt
Sandi Mbatsha
Sipho Mdluli
Thandi Xaba
Tshebo Mokoena
Vivienne Davidoff
4. Events after the reporting period
The directors’ are not aware of any material event which occurred after the reporting date and up to the date of this
report.
5. Registration of Non Profit Company
On 21 May 2015, Childline Gauteng was registered as a Non Profit Company with the registration number 2015/173593/08
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To Childline Gauteng NPC
We have audited the annual financial statements of Childline Gauteng NPC, as set out on pages 7-15, which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2016, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in
equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.
Directors’ Responsibility for the Annual Financial Statements
The directors’ responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these annual financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards for Small and Medium Sized Entities, and requirements of the Companies Act 71
of 2008, and for such internal control as the management committee determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
annual financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these annual financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the annual financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the annual
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the annual financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the annual financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the annual financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion,the annual financial statements of Childline Gauteng NPC for the year ended 31 March 2016 have been
prepared in all material respects, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards for Small and Medium Sized
Entities, and the requirements of the Companies Act 71 of 2008.
Supplementary information
Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to the fact that supplementary information set out 13 on page does not
form part of the annual financial statements and is presented as additional information. We have not audited this
information and accordingly do not express an opinion thereon
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Independent Auditors’ Report
Other reports required by the Companies Act
As part of our audit of the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016, we have read the Directors’ Report
for the purpose of identifying whether there are material inconsistencies between these reports and the audited annual
financial statements. This report is the responsibility of the respective preparer. Based on reading this report we have not
identified material inconsistencies between this report and the audited annual financial statements. However, we have not
audited this report and accordingly do not express an opinion on this report.
23 June 2016
Pretoria
BDO South Africa Incorporated
Partner
Registered Auditors
Per: Blignaut
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Statement of Financial Position

as at 31 March 2016
Figures in Rand

Note(s)

2016

2015

Assets
Non-Current Assets
Investments

3

11 968 391

12 479 363

Current Assets
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

4
5

134 349
132 448

1 046 890
1 456 240

266 797

2 503 130

Total Assets

12 235 188

14 982 493

Funding and Liabilities
Funding
Accumulated Funds

12 019 900

14 679 420

49 654
165 634
215 288
12 235 188

303 073
303 073
14 982 493

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables
Deferred Income
Provisions
Total Funding and Liabilities
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8
6
7

Statement of Comprehensive Income
Figures in Rand
Note(s)
Revenue

9

Other income

10

Operating expenses
Operating loss

2015

9 809 409

11 960 191

210 529

639 489

(12 841 884)

(12 887 372)

(2 821 946)

(287 692)

Investment revenue

11

516 952

560 908

Fair value adjustments

12

(354 526)

578 556

(2 659 520)

851 772

(Loss) profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive (loss) income for the year
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(2 659 520)

851 772

Statement of Changes in Equity
Figures in Rand

Balance at 01 April 2014
Profit for the year

Accumulated
Funds

Total equity

13 827 648

13 827 648

851 772

851 772

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year

851 772

Balance at 01 April 2015

14 679 420

14 679 420

Loss for the year

(2 659 520)

578 556

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive loss for the year
Balance at 31 March 2016
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-

-

(2 659 520)

(2 659 520)

12 019 900

12 019 900

Statement of Cash Flows
Figures in Rand
Note(s)

2016

2015

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash used in operations

14

(1 997 190)

(1 276 034)

Interest income

220 169

184 884

Dividends received

296 783

Net cash from operating activities

(1 480 238)

376 024
(715 126)

Cash flows from investing activities
Net movement in investments

156 446

(683 724)

Net cash from investing activities

156 446

(683 724)

Total cash movement for the year

(1 323 792)

(1 398 850)

Cash at the beginning of the year

1 456 240

2 855 093

132 448

1 456 243

Total cash at end of the year
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5

Accounting Policies
1. Presentation of Annual Financial Statements
The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
for Small and Medium Sized Entities, and the Companies Act 71 of 2008. The annual financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis, and incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below. They are presented
in South African Rands.
These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period, except for the changes set out in note 16 First-time
adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards for Small and Medium Sized Entities.
1.1 Property, Plant And Equipment
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when :
• it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company; and
• the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost and charged to the income statement upon acquisition.
Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item
of property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing an asset and restoring the site on which it is located is also
included in the cost of property, plant and equipment.
1.2 Financial instruments
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial instruments are recognised initially when the company beomes party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.
Trade receivables
Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method. Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in profit or
loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired.
At the end of each reporting date, the carrying amounts of assets held in this category are reviewed to determine whether
there is any objective evidence of impairment. If so, an impairment loss is recognised.
Trade and other receivables are classified as loans and receivables.
Trade and other payables
Trade payables are carried at cost.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. These are
initially and subsequently recorded at fair value.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Investments are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis where the purchase or sale of an investment is under a
contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within the timeframe established by the market concerned.
Investments are measured initially and subsequently
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1.3 Share capital and equity
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities.
1.4 Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits
The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as paid
vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised in the period in
which the service is rendered and are not discounted.
The expected cost of compensated absence is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase their
entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs.
The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or constructive
obligation to make such payments as a result of past performance.
1.5 Provisions and contingencies
Provisions are recognised when:
• the organisation has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
• it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation;
and
• a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.
•
The amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation.
1.6 Government grants
Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the organisation will comply with the conditions
attaching to them; and the grants will be received.
Government grants are recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs that they are
intended to compensate.
A government grant that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the entity with no future related costs is recognised as income of the period in
which it becomes receivable.
1.7 Revenue
Income consists primarily of donations and grants. Donations and grants are recorded when they become receivable.
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand
2. Changes in accounting policy
The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
for Small and Medium Sized Entities.
2016

2015

11 968 391

12 479 363

11 968 391

12 479 363

3. Investments
At fair value through profit or loss
Nedbank Private Wealth
Non-current assets
At fair value through profit or loss

4. Trade and other receivables
Childline South Africa

-

67 108

Sasol Synfuels

-

11 400

VAT

134 349

1 575

Department of Education

-

822 807

First for Women

-

144 000

134 349

1 046 890

5. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Cash on hand

5 802

5 800

Bank balances

126 646

1 450 440

132 448

1 456 240

6. Deferred Income
The deferred income relates to Income being received from the US Embassy however only a portion has been spent in the
current year. Thus the remaining amount will be utilised in the 2017 financial year end.
7. Provisions
Reconciliation of provisions - 2016
Opening
balance
Leave pay provision

-

Additions
165 634

Total
165 634

8. Trade and other payables
Accrued bonus
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-

303 073

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand
2016

2015

9 809 409

11 960 191

9. Revenue
Donations and grants
10. Other income
Profit and loss on sale of assets and liabilities

-

293 426

Recoveries

100 000

122 615

Fundraising activities income

110 529

223 448

210 529

639 489

296 783

376 024

195 741

140 099

24 428

44 785

220 169

184 884

516 952

560 908

(354 526)

578 556

49 230

44 700

(2 659 520)

851 772

11. Investment revenue
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Listed financial assets - Local
Interest revenue
Listed financial assets
Call account

12. Fair value adjustments
Other financial assets
13. Auditors’ remuneration
Fees
14. Cash used in operations
(Loss) profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Gain on sale of assets

-

(293 426)

Dividends received

(296 783)

(376 024)

Interest received

(220 169)

(184 884)

Fair value adjustments

354 526

(578 556)

Movements in provisions

165 634

-

Trade and other receivables

912 541

(791 607)

Trade and other payables

(303 073)

96 691

Changes in working capital:

Deferred Income
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49 654

-

(1 997 190)

(1 276 034)

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
15. Taxation
No provision has been made for current taxation as Childline Gauteng NPC is a registered non-profit company and so is
exempt from normal income tax.
16. First-time adoption of the International Financial Reporting Standards
The company has applied International Financial Reporting Standards for Small and Medium Sized Entities, for the first time
for the 2016 year end.
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Detailed Income Statement
Figures in Rand

Revenue
Other income
Calender project
Fundraising activities income
Dividends received
Interest received

Note(s)

2016

2015

9

9 809 409

11 960 191

11
11

100 000
110 529
296 783
220 169

122 615
223 448
376 024
184 884

Gains on disposal of assets

727 481

Operating expenses
Auditors remuneration
Bank charges and administration fees
Child rights campaigns
Children’s grants
Consulting fees
Creche fees
Employee costs
Equipment and Vehicles
Insurance
Lease rentals on operating lease
Marketing and Fundraising
Medical expenses
Meetings and Functions
Office expenses
Printing and stationery
Reception centre operations
Repairs and maintenance
Security
Self-sustainability projects
Social relief
Telephone and fax
Training annd therapy development
Transport and freight
Travel - local
Operating (loss) profit before fair value adjustments to investments
Fair value adjustments
(Loss) profit for the year

13

12

(49 230)
(101 701)
(18 284)
(509 426)
(65 976)
(20 600)
(10 517 886)
(33 173)
(74 532)
(496 692)
(235)
(110)
(25 452)
(55 215)
(21 628)
(18 224)
(126 281)
(3 210)
(5 669)
(294 047)
(301 036)
(99 761)
(3 516)
(12 841 884)
(2 304 994)
(354 526)
(2 659 520)

293 426
1 200 397

(44 700)
(110 639)
(28 033)
(433 281)
(111 570)
(32 630)
(10 578 856)
(63 605)
(51 733)
(450 560)
(29 596)
(4 002)
(120 340)
(82 648)
(19 666)
(43 170)
(85 426)
(9 063)
(10 680)
(4 509)
(247 179)
(324 481)
(1 005)
(12 887 372)
273 216
578 556
851 772

The supplementary information presented does not form part of the annual financial statements and is unaudited
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Childline National Office
Tel:			

@

(+27)-(0)31-201 2059

Fax:			

(+27)-(0)86 511 0032

Postal Addresses:

P O Box 51418, Musgrave, 4062

Physical Addresses:

24 Stephen Dlamini Road, Musgrave, Durban, 4000

Email: )		

admin@childlinesa.org.za

Website:)		

www.childlinesa.org.za

